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 AGENDA 
 SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 MONDAY NOVEMBER 14, 2016 AT 9:00 AM 
 SAN ELIJO WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 2695 MANCHESTER AVENUE 
 CARDIFF BY THE SEA, CALIFORNIA  

 
              

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (NON-ACTION ITEM) 

5. PRESENTATION OF AWARDS - None 

6. * CONSENT CALENDAR 

7. * APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE OCTOBER 10, 2016 MEETING  

8. * APPROVAL FOR PAYMENT OF WARRANTS AND MONTHLY INVESTMENT 
REPORTS 

9. * SAN ELIJO WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY TREATED EFFLUENT FLOWS – 
MONTHLY REPORT 

10. * SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM – 
MONTHLY REPORT 

11. * ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

Items on the Consent Calendar are routine matters and there will be no discussion unless an item is removed from 
the Consent Calendar. Items removed by a "Request to Speak" form from the public will be handled immediately 
following adoption of the Consent Calendar. Items removed by a Board Member will be handled as directed by the 
Board. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

12. FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 FINANCIAL AUDIT ACCEPTANCE  
 

1. Accept and file the Fiscal Year 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements for the 
San Elijo Joint Powers Authority; 
 

2. Accept and file the Fiscal Year 2015-16 SAS 114 Letter; and  
 

3. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 
 

Staff Reference: Director of Finance and Administration 
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13. SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY END OF YEAR REVIEW OF THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2015-16 OPERATING AND DEBT SERVICE EXPENSES 
 

No action required. This memorandum is submitted for information only. 
 

Staff Reference: Director of Finance and Administration 

14. EXTENSION OF SURPLUS RECYCLED WATER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SAN 
ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (SEJPA), THE SAN DIEGUITO WATER 
DISTRICT (SDWD), AND THE ENCINITAS RANCH GOLF AUTHORITY (ERGA) 

 
1. Authorize the General Manager to execute the proposed Surplus Recycled 

Water Agreement; and 
 

2. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 
 

Staff Reference: General Manager 

15. WASTEWATER SERVICE AGREEMENT EXTENSION WITH THE RANCHO SANTA 
FE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
1. Authorize the General Manager to execute the proposed agreement; and 
 
2. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 

 
Staff Reference: General Manager 

16. CLOSED SESSION 

 The Board will adjourn to Closed Session to discuss item(s) identified below. Closed Session is not open to the public; 
however, an opportunity will be provided at this time if members of the public would like to comment on any item listed 
below. (Three minute limit.) A closed session may be held at any time during this meeting of the San Elijo Joint Powers 
Authority for the purposes of discussing potential or pending litigation or other appropriate matters pursuant to the 
"Ralph M. Brown Act".   

 A closed session will be held per Government Code Section 54957, Public Employee 
Performance Evaluation: General Manager. 

17. CONSIDERATION OF GENERAL MANAGER COMPENSATION PER CURRENT 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

1. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 

18. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 Informational report by the General Manager on items not requiring Board action. 

19. GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT  

 Informational report by the General Counsel on items not requiring Board action. 
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20. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

This item is placed on the agenda to allow individual Board Members to briefly convey information to the Board or 
public, or to request staff to place a matter on a future agenda and/or report back on any matter. There is no 
discussion or action taken on comments by Board Members. 

21. ADJOURNMENT 

The next regularly scheduled San Elijo Joint Powers Authority Board Meeting will be 
Monday, December 12, 2016 at 9:00 a.m.  

NOTICE: 

The San Elijo Joint Powers Authority’s open and public meetings meet the protections and prohibitions contained in 
Section 202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C Section 12132), and the federal rules and 
regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Any person with a disability who requires a modification or 
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in a public meeting of the SEJPA Board of 
Directors may request such modification or accommodation from Michael T. Thornton, General Manager, (760) 753-
6203 ext. 72.  

The agenda package and materials related to an agenda item submitted after the packet’s distribution to the Board is 
available for public review in the lobby of the SEJPA Administrative Office during normal business hours. Agendas 
and minutes are available at www.sejpa.org. The SEJPA Board meetings are held on the second Monday of the 
month, except August.  

 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Michael T. Thornton, Secretary of the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority, hereby certify that I 
posted, or have caused to be posted, a copy of the foregoing agenda in the following 
locations: 

San Elijo Water Reclamation Facility, 2695 Manchester Avenue, Cardiff, California 
City of Encinitas, 505 South Vulcan Avenue, Encinitas, California 
City of Solana Beach, 635 South Highway 101, Solana Beach, California 

The notice was posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, in accordance with Government 
Code Section 54954.2(a). 

Date: November 9, 2016 
 
 
        
Michael T. Thornton, P.E. 
Secretary / General Manager 

http://www.sejpa.org/
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SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING 

HELD ON OCTOBER 10, 2016 
AT THE 

SAN ELIJO WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 
  
 
Catherine Blakespear, Chair Ginger Marshall, Vice Chair 
              
 
A meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority (SEJPA) was held 
Monday, October 10, 2016, at 9:00 a.m., at the San Elijo Water Reclamation Facility at 2695 
Manchester Avenue, Cardiff by the Sea, California. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chair Blakespear called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Directors Present: Catherine Blakespear 
 Ginger Marshall 
 Mark Muir 
 David Zito 
  
Directors Absent: None 
  
Others Present:  
General Manager Michael Thornton 
Director of Operations Christopher Trees 
Director of Finance & Administration Paul Kinkel 
Associate Engineer Mike Konicke 
Accounting Technician Carrie Cook 
Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk Jennifer Basco 
 
SEJPA Counsel: 
     Procopio, Cory, Hargreaves & Savitch Traci Stender 
 
City of Solana Beach: 
     City Manager Greg Wade 
 
City of Encinitas: 
     Director of Engineering and Public Works Glenn Pruim 
     Public Works Management Analyst Bill Wilson 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

Chair Blakespear led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
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4. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None 

5. PRESENTATION OF AWARDS 
 
None 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Moved by Board Member Muir and seconded by Vice Chair Marshall to approve the 
Consent Calendar. 
 
Motion carried with unanimous vote of approval. 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 Approval of Minutes for the September 12, 2016 meeting 
 

Agenda Item No. 8 Approval for Payment of Warrants and Monthly 
Investment Report 

 
Agenda Item No. 9 San Elijo Water Reclamation Facility Treated Effluent 

Flows – Monthly Report 
 
Agenda Item No. 10 San Elijo Joint Powers Authority Recycled Water Program 

– Monthly Report 
 
Agenda Item No. 11 Award of Professional Service Agreement to Tesco for 

As-Needed SCADA Support 

12. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 None 

13. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
FOR PRELIMINARY TREATMENT UPGRADES 
 
General Manager Thornton stated that the preliminary treatment system provides basic 
physical treatment of the raw wastewater that enters the facility. The 2015 Facility Plan 
recommended system improvements to address hydraulic limitations, system wear, and 
aging equipment. As final design progressed, Staff identified opportunities to incorporate 
four closely related capital improvement projects into the Preliminary Treatment 
Upgrades project. Mr. Thornton stated that through project consolidation, it is possible to 
streamline contract administration, condense construction schedules, optimize 
construction phasing, and reduce overall project costs. The four projects include: 
improvements to the Odor Control System; Olivenhain Forcemain extension design; 
specific site improvements that will enhance storm water pollution control compliance; 
and additional electrical and SCADA integration. Funding for this additional effort will be 
provided by Wastewater Capital and Cardiff Sanitary Division Programs, as well as 
approximately $95,000 in grant funds.  
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Moved by Board Member Muir and seconded by Board Member Zito to: 
 
1. Authorize the General Manager to approve a contract amendment with Dudek 

for the additional design of Odor Control Improvements, Olivenhain Forcemain 
Extension, Site Improvements, and SCADA Upgrades for an amount not to 
exceed $145,480.  
 

Motion carried with unanimous vote of approval. 

14. SAN ELIJO OCEAN OUTFALL 2016 ANNUAL INSPECTION REPORT 
  
Christopher Trees, Director of Operations gave a brief history of the San Elijo Ocean 
Outfall and presented the San Elijo Ocean Outfall Year 2016 Annual Inspection Report 
to the Board of Directors. Marine Taxonomic Services, Ltd. (MTS) completed the 
inspection this year and reported that the San Elijo Ocean Outfall was found to be in 
excellent overall condition. Mr. Trees discussed recommendations for continued 
structural integrity and environmentally safe operation of the San Elijo Ocean Outfall. 
 
No action required. This memorandum was submitted for information only. 

15. CLOSED SESSION  
 
The Board of Directors adjourned to closed session at 9:33 a.m., pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957, Public Employee Performance Evaluation: General 
Manager.  
 
The Board of Directors came out of closed session at 9:55 a.m. with no reportable 
action. 

16. CONSIDERATION OF GENERAL MANAGER COMPENSATION PER CURRENT 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 
No action taken. Item to be continued at the November Board meeting. 

17. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 None 

18. GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT 
 
None 

19. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 None 
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20. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:02 a.m. The next Board of Directors meeting will be held 
on November 14, 2016. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
        
Michael T. Thornton, P.E. 
General Manager 



SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
PAYMENT OF WARRANTS
17-11
For the Months of September and October 2016

Warrant # Vendor Name G/L Account Warrant Description Amount

33477 Abcana Industries Supplies - Chemicals Hydrochloric acid 660.59

33478 Airgas USA, LLC Supplies - Chemicals Liquid oxygen industrial 453.96

33479 AT&T Utilities - Telephone DSL - 08/10/16 - 09/09/16 106.64

33480 AT&T Utilities - Telephone Phone service - 08/13/16 - 09/12/16 350.95

33481 AT&T Utilities - Telephone DSL - 08/20/16 - 09/19/16 106.19

33482 Atlas Pumping Service Inc. Services - Grease & Scum Roll-off service 3,599.55

33483 Barracuda Networks, Inc. Utilities - Internet Network back-up 50.00

33484 Boot World, Inc. Uniforms - Boots Safety boots 340.88

33485 County Burner Machinery Corp. Services - Maintenance Service blower motor 262.00

33486 Complete Office Supplies - Office Office supplies 181.23

33487 CWEA Membership Dues & Memberships Plant maintenance technologist; membership 255.00

33488 DMV Services - Other Safety records - 07/01/16 - 08/31/16 8.00

33489 Evantec Lab Supply Supplies - Lab Laboratory supplies 464.43

33490 Fisher Scientific Supplies - Shop & Field Laboratory supplies 340.29

33491 Forte of San Diego Services - Janitorial October 1,000.00

33492 Government Finance Officers Assoc. Dues & Memberships Membership 160.00

33493 Harrington Industrial Plastics Repair Parts Expense Gasket 165.25

33494 Hoch Consulting, APC Services - Engineering Blower project 5,817.75

33495 Kaman Industrial Technologies Repair Parts Expense Shifting yoke 137.33

33496 Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. Services - Engineering Predesign of recycled water relocation 20,495.13

33497 Kooltronic Inc. Repair Parts Expense Blower 649.00

33498 The Lawton Group Services - Intern Program Week worked - 09/05/16 - 09/09/16 145.00

33499 Marine Taxonomic Services, Ltd. Services - Contractors Inspection and maintenance of ocean outfall 24,490.00

33500 MBC Applied Environmental Services - Contractors Annual aerial survey of kelp 5,187.75

33501 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. Supplies - Shop & Field Bulbs, pipe fittings, PVC, ball bearings, seals 1,014.18

33502 MetLife - Group Benefits Dental/Vision Dental - October 1,332.23

33503 Metro Fire & Safety Services - Maintenance Annual sprinklers inspection 295.00

33504 Napa Auto Parts Repair Parts Expense Hose, clamp, and battery 433.18

33505 Pacific Green Landscape Services - Landscape September 2,975.00

33506 Pacific Safety Center Training - Safety Annual membership renewal 145.00

33507 P.E.R.S. Medical Insurance - Pers Health - October 19,469.65

33508 Public Employees - Retirement Retirement Plan - PERS Retirement - 09/10/16 - 09/23/16 12,025.83

33509 U.S. Postal Service Postage/Shipping Postage stamps 470.00

33510 Radwell International, Inc. Repair Parts Expense Allen Bradley - module 170.15

33511 ReadyRefresh Supplies - Lab Kitchen and lab supplies 348.92

33512 Red Truck Fire & Safety Co. Supplies - Safety Replaced fire extinguisher 103.53

33513 Roesling Nakamura Terada Architects Services - Professional SEJPA building predesign 4,727.00

33514 Safety-Kleen Corp. Services - Maintenance Annual service contract 300.09

33515 Santa Fe Irrigation District Utilities - Water Recycled water 75.25

33516 San Diego Gas & Electric Utilities - Gas & Electric Gas and electric - 08/04/16 - 09/05/16 61,209.14

33517 State Water Resources Control Board Dues & Memberships Certification - Grade III 300.00

33518 Superior Electric Motor Service Capital Outlay Dismantled pump and motor, rebuild pump #3 9,098.16

33519 Michael Thornton Supplies - Office Computer equipment 86.59

33520 Unifirst Corporation Services - Uniforms Uniform service 180.60

33521 UPS Postage/Shipping Mailing documents 46.42

33522 USA Bluebook Repair Parts Expense Pressure gauge seal 371.87

33523 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents EE Deduction Benefits ICMA - 457 6,500.55

33524 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents ICMA Retirement ICMA - 401a 2,977.43

33525 Verizon Wireless Utilities - Telephone 08/11/16 - 09/10/16 257.55

33526 Verizon Wireless Utilities - Telephone Cell phone service - 08/08/16 - 09/07/16 682.20

33527 WageWorks Payroll Processing Fees Administration and compliance fees 134.00

33528 Water Environment Federation Dues & Memberships Membership 297.00

33529 SDG&E Fees - Permits Shutdown electric service 2,138.00

33530 Aflac EE Deduction Benefits Aflac - October 554.76

33531 Ag Tech, LLC Services - Biosolids Hauling Biosolids hauling - September 12,328.60

33532 Airgas USA, LLC Supplies - Chemicals Liquid Oxygen 226.98
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SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
PAYMENT OF WARRANTS
17-11
For the Months of September and October 2016

Warrant # Vendor Name G/L Account Warrant Description Amount

33533 All American First Aid & Safety Supplies - Shop & Field First aid, safety, and operations supplies 219.51

33534 Arizona Instrument Services - Maintenance Calibration and sensor assembly 2,100.00

33535 ASCE Membership Dues & Memberships Membership dues 290.00

33536 BankCard Center Various License, vehicle maint., printing, parts, postage 1,108.05

33537 Black & Veatch Services - Engineering Review design - Headworks 835.00

33538 Brenntag Pacific, Inc. Supplies - Chemicals Sodium Hydroxide 2,279.67

33539 Chang Ruthenberg & Long Services - Legal General - Employee's benefits 1,161.00

33540 Chevron & Texaco Business Card Fuel Fuel - September 373.66

33541 Coast Waste Management, Inc. Services - Grit & Screenings Roll-off service 3,125.19

33542 Complete Office Supplies - Office Office supplies 121.19

33543 Corodata Rent Record storage - September 78.68

33544 County of San Diego Fees - Permits CEQA Notice for Outfall Project 50.00

33545 Dimension Data North America Licenses Cloud managed - 5 year license and support 1,261.26

33546 EDCO Waste & Recycling Service Utilities - Trash September 237.22

33547 Encina Wastewater Authority Service - EWA Support Human Resource and Safety sharing 1,010.44

33548 City of Encinitas Service - IT Support Admin network - October 2,625.00

33549 Global Capacity Utilities - Internet T-1 service - November 296.03

33550 Golden Bell Products Supplies - Chemicals Lift station degreaser 432.00

33551 Hardy Diagnostics Supplies - Lab Laboratory supplies 362.12

33552 Harrington Industrial Plastics Repair Parts Expense Valve parts 941.80

33553 Jennifer Basco Subsistence - Travel Mileage 56.07

33554 Kemira Water Solutions, Inc. Supplies - Chemicals Ferric Chloride 4,017.60

33555 Konica Minolta Services - Maintenance Copier maintenance service 81.67

33556 The Lawton Group Services - Intern Program Week worked - 09/19/16 - 09/30/16 652.50

33557 Lee's Lock & Safe Services - Maintenance Repair lock 113.00

33558 Marine Taxonomic Services, LTD Services - Contractors Offshore water sampling 299.00

33559 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. Supplies - Shop & Field Fuses, flag, PVC pipes, and fittings 209.18

33560 The Nyhart Company Services - Accounting GASB 68 report 1,500.00

33561 Olin Corp - Chlor Alkali Supplies - Chemicals Sodium Hypochlorite 2,589.40

33562 Olivenhain Municipal Water District Rent Pipeline payment - September 6,165.00

33563 OneSource Distributors, Inc. Repair Parts Expense Memory module with real time clock 248.99

33564 Public Employees - Retirement Retirement Plan - PERS Retirement - 09/24/16 - 10/07/16 11,940.32

33565 Preferred Benefit Insurance Dental/Vision Vision 283.70

33566 ProBuild Company, LLC Supplies - Shop & Field Shop and field supplies; repairs 74.69

33567 RSF Security Systems Services - Maintenance Upgrade panel 156.00

33568 Santa Fe Irrigation District Utilities - Water Recycled water 1,247.03

33569 San Dieguito Water District Utilities - Water Recycled water 1,286.43

33570 San Dieguito Water District Utilities - Water Recycled water 8,810.34

33571 Smart & Final Supplies - Office Kitchen supplies 257.80

33572 Southcoast Heating & A/C Services - Maintenance Installation of two air compressors 2,868.00

33573 Spiess Construction Co., Inc. Services - Contractors Turbo Blower project 28,238.75

33574 Board of Equalization Accrued Sales Tax Payable 3rd Qtr 2016 1,090.00

33575 Sun Life Financial Life Insurance/Disability Life and disability insurance - November 1,535.17

33576 State Water Resources Control Board Dues & Memberships Operator certificates 640.00

33577 SWRCB - ELAP Fees Licenses Annual fees - Laboratory Accreditation 3,555.00

33578 Test America Services - Laboratory Water sample testing 3,574.50

33579 Michael Thornton Supplies - Office Notary fees, meeting, and office supplies 71.67

33580 Christopher A. Trees Subsistence - Travel Meetings 36.72

33581 Unifirst Corporation Services - Uniforms Uniform service 637.82

33582 UPS Postage/Shipping Mailing water samples and parts 65.73

33583 Underground Service Alert/SC Services - Alarm Dig alert - September 99.00

33584 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents EE Deduction Benefits ICMA - 457 6,489.57

33585 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents ICMA Retirement ICMA - 401a 2,976.02

33586 VWR International, Inc. Supplies - Lab Laboratory supplies 827.21

33587 WEX Bank Fuel Fuel - September 216.85

33588 Airgas USA, LLC Supplies - Chemicals Liquid oxygen 226.98
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SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
PAYMENT OF WARRANTS
17-11
For the Months of September and October 2016

Warrant # Vendor Name G/L Account Warrant Description Amount

33589 AT&T Utilities - Telephone Phone service - 09/13/16 - 10/12/16 360.36

33590 AT&T Utilities - Telephone Alarm service - October 414.96

33591 Atlas Pumping Service Inc. Services - Grease & Scum Grease and scum pumping 2,317.02

33592 Burtech Pipeline, Inc. Services - Contractors Emergency water main repair 4,738.23

33593 California State Lands Commission Fees - Permits Outfall - staff project charge 385.84

33594 CDW Government Licenses Bluebeam 462.00

33595 Comoso Repair Parts Expense Hydraulic oil 133.58

33596 DMV Services - Other Safety records - 09/01/16 - 09/30/16 2.00

33597 Dudek & Associates Services - Professional SRF loan support, headworks, SWAP, blower 36,167.09

33598 City of Encinitas Retrofit Loans - Oak Crest Par Oakcrest Park retrofit loan overpayment 88.90

33599 Forte of San Diego Services - Janitorial November 1,000.00

33600 Kaman Industrial Technologies Repair Parts Expense Shifting yoke 133.26

33601 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. Repair Parts Expense Plumbing parts, battery, switches 787.75

33602 MetLife - Group Benefits Dental/Vision Dental - November 1,332.23

33603 Olin Corp - Chlor Alkali Supplies - Chemicals Sodium Hypochlorite 2,674.71

33604 Olivenhain Municipal Water District Services - Lobbying Deposit for the Furman Group 6,440.16

33605 Pacific Green Landscape Services - Landscape October 2,975.00

33606 Pall Corporation Repair Parts Expense Parts for membrane 1,105.48

33607 P.E.R.S. Medical Insurance - PERS Health - November 19,469.65

33608 Public Employees - Retirement Retirement Plan - PERS Retirement - 10/08/16 - 10/21/16 11,937.70

33609 Polydyne Inc. Supplies - Chemicals Clarifloc 2,856.60

33610 Procopio Cory Hargreaves Savitch Services - Legal General - September 4,303.50

33611 Rising Tide Partners Services - Professional Draft article for TPO magazine 312.50

33612 Rockwell Solutions Repair Parts Expense Impeller, cutter bar, and nut 3,657.44

33613 Santa Fe Irrigation District SFID Distribution Pipeline Pipeline purchase payment - September 1,308.88

33614 San Diego Gas & Electric Utilities - Gas & Electric Gas and electric - 09/05/16 - 10/04/16 59,397.06

33615 Television 101 Services - Professional Videography for education, training, and SOPs 9,325.00

33616 Thatcher Company of California Supplies - Chemicals Aluminum Sulfate 5,521.58

33617 Unifirst Corporation Services - Uniforms Uniform service 493.69

33618 UPS Postage/Shipping Shipping fees for parts 140.92

33619 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents EE Deduction Benefits ICMA - 457 6,489.28

33620 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents ICMA Retirement ICMA - 401a 2,974.86

33621 Verizon Wireless Utilities - Telephone SCADA private network - 09/11/16 - 10/10/16 249.30

33622 Verizon Wireless Utilities - Telephone Cell phone service - 09/08/16 - 10/07/16 681.56

33623 VWR International, Inc. Supplies - Lab Laboratory supplies 672.95

33624 WageWorks Payroll Processing Fees Administration and compliance fees 134.00

San Elijo Payroll Account Payroll Payroll - 09/30/16 66,045.93

San Elijo Payroll Account Payroll Payroll - 10/14/16 62,061.89

San Elijo Payroll Account Payroll Payroll - 10/28/16 63,112.44

701,412.61$   
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SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

PAYMENT OF WARRANTS SUMMARY

 

For the Months of September and October 2016

PAYMENT OF WARRANTS 701,412.61$     

Reference Number 17-11

Paul F. Kinkel

Director of Finance & Administration

As of October 31, 2016

I hereby certify that the demands listed and covered by warrants are correct and just to 
the best of my knowledge, and that the money is available in the proper funds to pay 
these demands. The cash flows of the SEJPA, including the Member Agency 
commitment in their operating budgets to support the operations of the SEJPA, are 
expected to be adequate to meet the SEJPA's obligations over the next six months. I 
also certify that the SEJPA's investment portfolio complies with the SEJPA's investment 
policy. 
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STATEMENT OF FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PAYMENT OF WARRANTS

AND INVESTMENT INFORMATION

As of October 31, 2016

FUNDS ON DEPOSIT WITH AMOUNT

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND

(SEPTEMBER 2016 YIELD 0.634%)

RESTRICTED SRF RESERVE 630,000.00$       

UNRESTRICTED DEPOSITS 6,471,905.02$    

CALIFORNIA BANK AND TRUST

(SEPTEMBER 2016 YIELD 0.01%)

REGULAR CHECKING 279,097.14$       

PAYROLL CHECKING 5,000.00$           

TOTAL RESOURCES 7,386,002.16$    

 8 - 5
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* AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 
 
 
 SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 MEMORANDUM 

November 14, 2016 

TO:  Board of Directors 
San Elijo Joint Powers Authority 

 
FROM: General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: SAN ELIJO WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY TREATED EFFLUENT FLOWS – 

MONTHLY REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
No action required. This memorandum is submitted for information only. 
  
DISCUSSION 
 
Monthly Treatment Plant Performance and Evaluation 
 
Wastewater treatment for the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority (SEJPA) met all NPDES ocean 
effluent limitation requirements for the month of September 2016. The primary indicators of 
treatment performance include the removal of Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD) 
and Total Suspended Solids (TSS). The SEJPA is required to remove a minimum of 85 percent of 
the CBOD and TSS from the wastewater. For the month of September, treatment levels for CBOD 
and TSS were 98.5 and 98.5 percent removal, respectively, (as shown in Figure 1 and Figure 2).   
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Figure 1 - Wastewater Treatment Performance of the SEJPA
Removal of Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (CBOD)  

Influent Effluent Effluent Permit Level
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Member Agency Flows 
 
Presented below are the influent and effluent flows for the month of September. Average daily 
influent flows were recorded for each Member Agency. Total effluent flow was calculated for the San 
Elijo Water Reclamation Facility.   
 

 September 

 Influent (mgd) Effluent (mgd)* 

Cardiff Sanitary Division 1.311 0.601 

City of Solana Beach 0.975 0.447 

Rancho Santa Fe SID 0.110 0.050 

Total San Elijo WRF Flow 2.396 1.098 

 
* Effluent is calculated by subtracting the recycled water production from the influent wastewater. 

 
Table 1 (next page) presents the historical average, maximum, and unit influent and effluent flow 
rates per month for each of the Member Agencies during the past 5 years. It also presents the 
number of connected Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs) for each of the Member Agencies during this 
same time period. 
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Figure 2 - Wastewater Treatment Performance of the SEJPA
Removal of Total Suspended Solids (TSS)

Influent Effluent Effluent Permit Level
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CSD RSF CSD SB TOTAL TOTAL

MONTH CSD RSF CSD SB CSD RSF CSD SB EDUS EDUS EDUS EDUS CSD RSF SB PLANT

Oct-11 1.260 0.142 1.303 2.705 0.730 0.082 0.755 1.567 8,260       486          7,728       16,474     153 292 169 164

Nov-11 1.338 0.167 1.307 2.812 1.099 0.137 1.074 2.310 8,261       486          7,728       16,475     162 344 169 171

Dec-11 1.299 0.164 1.305 2.768 1.103 0.139 1.108 2.350 8,264       487          7,728       16,479     157 337 169 168

Jan-12 1.291 0.145 1.303 2.739 1.032 0.116 1.042 2.190 8,266       488          7,728       16,482     160 232 169 166

Feb-12 1.259 0.137 1.283 2.679 1.006 0.109 1.025 2.140 8,268       488          7,728       16,484     152 281 166 163

Mar-12 1.313 0.153 1.255 2.721 0.968 0.113 0.925 2.006 8,269       488          7,728       16,485     159 314 162 165

Apr-12 1.348 0.145 1.209 2.702 0.906 0.097 0.813 1.816 8,278       488          7,728       16,494     163 297 156 164

May-12 1.333 0.150 1.211 2.694 0.577 0.065 0.525 1.167 8,280       488          7,728       16,496     161 308 157 163

Jun-12 1.365 0.143 1.237 2.745 0.547 0.057 0.496 1.100 8,284       489          7,728       16,501     165 293 160 166

Jul-12 1.372 0.126 1.296 2.794 0.457 0.042 0.431 0.930 8,289       489          7,728       16,506     166 258 168 169

Aug-12 1.383 0.128 1.291 2.802 0.473 0.044 0.441 0.958 8,290       490          7,728       16,508     167 261 167 170

Sep-12 1.349 0.142 1.220 2.711 0.544 0.058 0.492 1.094 8,291       490          7,728       16,509     163 290 158 164

Oct-12 1.327 0.123 1.203 2.653 0.678 0.063 0.615 1.356 8,294       490          7,728       16,512     160 251 156 161

Nov-12 1.343 0.128 1.181 2.652 0.862 0.082 0.758 1.702 8,299       490          7,728       16,517     162 261 153 161

Dec-12 1.383 0.141 1.197 2.721 1.261 0.129 1.091 2.481 8,300       490          7,728       16,518     167 288 155 165

Jan-13 1.357 0.145 1.215 2.717 1.155 0.124 1.034 2.313 8,300       490          7,728       16,518     163 296 157 164

Feb-13 1.349 0.138 1.201 2.688 1.048 0.108 0.933 2.089 8,301       490          7,728       16,519     163 282 155 163

Mar-13 1.402 0.154 1.235 2.791 0.905 0.100 0.797 1.802 8,302       493          7,728       16,521     169 314 160 169

Apr-13 1.297 0.124 1.237 2.658 0.531 0.051 0.506 1.088 8,304       493          7,728       16,523     156 253 160 161

May-13 1.339 0.126 1.185 2.650 0.376 0.036 0.333 0.745 8,304       493          7,728       16,525     161 256 153 160

Jun-13 1.341 0.126 1.190 2.657 0.269 0.025 0.239 0.533 8,307       493          7,728       16,528     161 256 154 161

Jul-13 1.366 0.144 1.269 2.779 0.482 0.050 0.448 0.980 8,309       493          7,728       16,530     164 292 164 168

Aug-13 1.342 0.168 1.258 2.768 0.380 0.048 0.356 0.784 8,311       494          7,728       16,533     161 340 163 167

Sep-13 1.343 0.117 1.193 2.653 0.403 0.036 0.358 0.797 8,311       494          7,728       16,533     162 237 154 160

Oct-13 1.319 0.132 1.184 2.635 0.629 0.063 0.565 1.257 8,314       494          7,728       16,536     159 267 153 159

Nov-13 1.348 0.133 1.194 2.675 0.932 0.092 0.826 1.850 8,315       494          7,728       16,537     162 270 155 162

Dec-13 1.341 0.134 1.191 2.666 1.030 0.103 0.915 2.048 8,316       494          7,728       16,538     161 272 154 161

Jan-14 1.322 0.135 1.194 2.651 0.851 0.087 0.768 1.706 8,318       495          7,728       16,541     159 273 155 160

Feb-14 1.314 0.127 1.172 2.613 0.954 0.093 0.851 1.898 8,323       495          7,728       16,546     158 257 152 158

Mar-14 1.339 0.134 1.185 2.658 0.858 0.086 0.760 1.704 8,324       496          7,728       16,548     161 270 153 161

Apr-14 1.326 0.128 1.128 2.582 0.449 0.043 0.382 0.874 8,328       498          7,728       16,554     159 257 146 156

May-14 1.353 0.124 1.127 2.604 0.159 0.015 0.132 0.306 8,333       498          7,728       16,559     162 249 146 157

Jun-14 1.341 0.126 1.188 2.655 0.207 0.020 0.183 0.410 8,333       498          7,728       16,559     161 253 154 160

Jul-14 1.271 0.130 1.307 2.708 0.232 0.024 0.239 0.495 8,338       499          7,728       16,565     152 261 169 163

Aug-14 1.228 0.130 1.298 2.656 0.227 0.024 0.239 0.490 8,345       500          7,728       16,573     147 260 168 160

Sep-14 1.215 0.113 1.232 2.560 0.211 0.019 0.214 0.444 8,351       500          7,728       16,579     145 226 159 154

Oct-14 1.204 0.114 1.198 2.516 0.394 0.038 0.392 0.824 8,353       500          7,728       16,581     144 228 155 152

Nov-14 1.237 0.118 1.198 2.553 0.667 0.063 0.646 1.376 8,354       502          7,728       16,584     148 235 155 154

Dec-14 1.323 0.147 1.229 2.699 1.163 0.129 1.081 2.373 8,355       502          7,728       16,585     158 293 159 163

Jan-15 1.253 0.130 1.232 2.615 0.984 0.102 0.967 2.053 8,359       503          7,977       16,838     150 259 154 155

Feb-15 1.229 0.132 1.228 2.589 0.757 0.081 0.757 1.595 8,361       504          7,977       16,841     147 262 154 154

Mar-15 1.269 0.135 1.231 2.635 0.583 0.062 0.566 1.211 8,365       504          7,977       16,846     152 268 154 156

Apr-15 1.183 0.124 1.196 2.503 0.350 0.036 0.354 0.740 8,366       504          7,977       16,847     141 246 150 149

May-15 1.209 0.117 1.149 2.475 0.545 0.053 0.518 1.116 8,367       505          7,977       16,848     144 232 144 147

Jun-15 1.287 0.113 1.052 2.452 0.362 0.032 0.296 0.690 8,369       506          7,977       16,852     154 224 132 146

Jul-15 1.282 0.110 1.176 2.568 0.392 0.034 0.359 0.785 8,370       510          8,003       16,883     153 216 147 152

Aug-15 1.264 0.095 1.087 2.446 0.315 0.023 0.271 0.609 8,371       510          8,003       16,884     151 186 136 145

Sep-15 1.256 0.105 1.001 2.362 0.457 0.038 0.364 0.859 8,372       511          8,003       16,885     150 206 125 140

Oct-15 1.243 0.106 1.002 2.351 0.681 0.058 0.549 1.288 8,373       511          8,003       16,886     148 208 125 139

Nov-15 1.250 0.100 0.994 2.344 0.792 0.063 0.630 1.485 8,376       511          8,003       16,889     149 196 124 139

Dec-15 1.266 0.107 1.016 2.389 0.971 0.082 0.780 1.833 8,377       511          8,003       16,891     151 210 127 141

Jan-16 1.342 0.131 1.037 2.510 1.189 0.116 0.918 2.223 8,380       511          8,003       16,894     160 257 130 149

Feb-16 1.245 0.112 1.008 2.365 0.780 0.070 0.631 1.481 8,383       512          8,003       16,897     149 219 126 140

Mar-16 1.267 0.116 1.023 2.406 0.763 0.070 0.616 1.449 8,388       512          8,003       16,903     151 227 128 142

Apr-16 1.240 0.102 0.990 2.332 0.675 0.055 0.539 1.269 8,389       512          8,003       16,904     148 199 124 138

May-16 1.238 0.117 1.002 2.357 0.505 0.048 0.409 0.962 8,389       512          8,003       16,904     148 229 125 139

Jun-16 1.205 0.111 1.055 2.371 0.362 0.033 0.317 0.712 8,390       514          8,003       16,907     144 216 132 140

Jul-16 1.336 0.105 1.008 2.449 0.586 0.046 0.442 1.074 8,392       514          8,020       16,926     159 204 126 145

Aug-16 1.317 0.107 1.007 2.431 0.647 0.053 0.495 1.195 8,393       516          8,020       16,929     157 207 126 144

Sep-16 1.311 0.110 0.975 2.396 0.601 0.050 0.447 1.098 8,394       516          8,020       16,930     156 213 122 142

CSD:  Cardiff Sanitary Division

RSF CSD:  Ranch Santa Fe Community Service District ASSUMPTIONS: SB Connected EDUs includes 300 EDUs for the City of San Diego

SB:  Solana Beach EDU Numbers Revised by Dudek for March and April 2013

EDU:  Equivalent Dwelling Unit

TABLE 1 - SAN ELIJO WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY MONTHLY REPORT - FLOWS AND EDUS

TOTAL 

PLANT

AVERAGE UNIT INFLUENT FLOW RATE 

(GAL/EDU/DAY)
CONNECTED EDUs

AVERAGE DAILY INFLUENT FLOW RATE 

(MGD)

AVERAGE DAILY EFFLUENT FLOW RATE 

(MGD)

TOTAL 

PLANT
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Figure 3 (below) presents the 5-year historical average daily flows per month for each Member 
Agency. This is to provide a historical overview of the average treated flow by each agency. Also 
shown in Figure 3 is the total wastewater treatment capacity of the plant, 5.25 mgd, of which each 
Member Agency has the right to 2.5 mgd, and Rancho Santa Fe Community Service District leases 
0.25 mgd. 
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Figure 3 - SEJPA AVERAGE DAILY INFLUENT FLOW
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City of Escondido Flows 
 
The average and peak flow rate from the City of Escondido Hale Avenue Resource Recovery 
Facility, which discharges through the San Elijo Ocean Outfall, is reported below. The following 
average flow rate and peak flow rate is reported by the City of Escondido for the month of 
September 2016.  
      

 Flow (mgd) 

Escondido (Average flow rate) 7.86 

Escondido (Peak flow rate)  16.2 

 

 
Connected Equivalent Dwelling Units 
 
The City of Solana Beach updated the connected EDUs number that is reported to the SEJPA in 
July 2016. The City of Encinitas and Rancho Santa Fe CSD report their connected EDUs every 
month. The number of EDUs connected for each of the Member Agencies is as follows: 

 
        Connected (EDU) 

Cardiff Sanitary Division    8,394 

Rancho Santa Fe SID       516 

City of Solana Beach    7,683 

San Diego (to Solana Beach)       337 

Total EDUs to System  16,930 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
     
Michael T. Thornton, P.E. 
General Manager 
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* AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 
 
 
 SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 MEMORANDUM 
 
 November 14, 2016 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 

San Elijo Joint Powers Authority 
 
FROM:  General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: SAN ELIJO RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM – MONTHLY REPORT  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
No action required. This memorandum is submitted for information only. 

 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
Recycled Water Production 
 
For the month of September 2016, recycled water demand was 148.05 acre-feet (AF), which 
was met using 148.05 AF of recycled water and 0.00 AF of supplementation with potable 
water. The distribution system was designed to use potable water during peak demand days.   
 
Figure 1 (attached) provides monthly supply demands for recycled water since September 
2000. Figure 2 (attached) provides a graphical view of annual recycled water demand spanning 
sixteen fiscal years. Figure 3 (attached) shows the monthly recycled water demand for each 
September since the program began operating. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Michael T. Thornton, P.E. 
General Manager 



10-2 
T:\Legal\Agenda\2016\11 November\No. 10 September 2016 Water Reclamation Report.docx 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

0

50

100

150

200

250

M
o

n
th

ly
 R

a
in

fa
ll

 (
in

c
h

e
s

)

R
E

C
Y

C
L

E
D

 W
A

T
E

R
 D

E
M

A
N

D
 (

A
C

R
E

-F
E

E
T

)

Figure 1 - MONTHLY RECYCLED WATER DEMAND

Potable Water Recycled Water Rainfall Recorded at the Plant
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Figure 2 - RECYCLED WATER DEMAND by FISCAL YEAR

Recycled Water Potable Water Rainfall Recorded at the Plant
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Figure 3 - SEPTEMBER RECYCLED WATER DEMAND

Potable Water Recycled Water Rainfall Recorded at the Plant
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 AGENDA ITEM NO. 12 
 
 
 SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 MEMORANDUM 
 
 November 14, 2016 
 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 San Elijo Joint Powers Authority 
 
FROM: Director of Finance and Administration 
 
SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 FINANCIAL AUDIT ACCEPTANCE 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Accept and file the Fiscal Year 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements for the San 
Elijo Joint Powers Authority; 
 

2. Accept and file the Fiscal Year 2015-16 SAS 114 Letter; and 
 
3. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The San Elijo Joint Powers Authority (SEJPA) is required by California Government Code and 
by Board policy to annually conduct an audit of its financial records. The Pun Group was 
selected by the Board at the March 2016 Board meeting to conduct an independent audit and 
express an opinion on the presentation of SEJPA’s financial statements for fairness and 
accuracy. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The financial audit of the SEJPA for Fiscal Year 2015-16 has been completed and it is the 
auditor’s opinion that SEJPA’s June 30, 2016 financial statements are presented fairly in all 
material aspects. The audit was performed in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts. As part of the audit, The Pun Group is required 
by professional standards to communicate to the Board of Directors specific information 
related to the audit. This communication to those charged with governance (auditor’s SAS 114 
letter) includes information related to accounting practices, audit difficulties, disagreements 
with management (if any), management representations, corrected and uncorrected 
misstatements, and other audit findings, issues or matters. Upon completion of the audit, the 
Pun Group stated that no transactions were noted where there was a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. In addition, there were no difficulties or disagreements with 
management in performing and completing the audit.  
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The audited financial statements include the following sections: 
 

 Independent Auditor’s Report 

 Management Discussion and Analysis 

 Statement of Net Position 

 Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

 Statements of Cash Flows 

 Notes to Financial Statements 

 Supplementary Information  
 

Mr. Kenneth Pun, CPA, the managing partner for The Pun Group, will present a summary of 
audit findings to the Board of Directors and answer questions. 
 
It is therefore recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Accept and file the Fiscal Year 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements for the San 
Elijo Joint Powers Authority;  

 
2. Accept and file the Fiscal Year 2015-16 SAS 114 Letter; and 
 
3. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Paul F. Kinkel 
Director of Finance & Administration 
 
 
Attachment 1: San Elijo Joint Powers Authority, Financial Statements and Independent 

Auditors’ Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2016  

Attachment 2: Fiscal Year 2015-16 SAS 114 Letter  

 



For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

ATTACHMENT 1
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibility

Opinion

www.pungroup.com



Required Supplementary Information 

Other Information



statement of net position

statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position 

statement of cash flows

notes to the financial statements
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Basis of Presentation 

Method of Accounting 

“economic resources”



Method of Accounting (Continued)

Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position,

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Estimates

Revenue Recognition 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 



Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 

Investments 

Fair Value Measurement 

Fair Value Measurement and Application

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Capital Assets 



Capital Assets (Continued) 

Capitalized Interest 

Amortization

Classification of Liabilities 

Compensated Absences 



Risk Management 



Pensions

Economic Dependency 

Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Assets



Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the SEJPA’s Investment Policy 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 



Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Concentration of Credit Risk 



Custodial Credit Risk 

Investment in State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 







2011 Refunding Revenue Bonds 



2011 Refunding Revenue Bonds (Continued) 

State Loan Payable 



Private Placement Loan Payable 

SFID Reimbursement Agreement Payable 



Plan Description 

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Costs 

Three-Year History of Net OPEB Obligation



Funding Status and Funding Progress 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 



Plan Descriptions 

Benefits Provided 



Employees Covered by the Benefit Terms

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 



Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 



Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 



Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 



Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

Change of Assumption 

Discount Rate 



Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 



Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Payable to the Pension Plan 

�
�



Contracts

Litigation 

Operating Leases 

New Governmental Accounting Standards Implementation for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

GASB No. 72 



New Governmental Accounting Standards Implementation for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 (Continued) 

GASB No. 73 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension and Related Assets 
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 
and 68

Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Implementation 

GASB Statement No. 74 

Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans

GASB Statement No. 75 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions. 

GASB Statement No. 76 

The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State 
and Local Governments. 

The Hierarchy of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments

GASB Statement No. 77

Tax Abatement Disclosures



Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Implementation (Continued) 

GASB Statement No. 78 

Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined 
Benefit Pension Plans

GASB Statement No. 79 

Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants

GASB Statement No. 80 

Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – An 
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14

GASB Statement No. 81 

Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements



Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Implementation (Continued) 

GASB Statement No. 82 

Pension Issues – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 
68, and No. 73
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Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

www.pungroup.com

ATTACHMENT 2



Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Disagreements with Management 

Management Representations 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 



Other Audit Findings or Issues 
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AGENDA ITEM NO. 13 
 
 

SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
November 14, 2016 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 

San Elijo Joint Powers Authority 
 
FROM:  Director of Finance and Administration  
 
SUBJECT: SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY END OF YEAR REVIEW OF THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2015-16 OPERATING AND DEBT SERVICE EXPENSES 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
No action required. This memorandum is submitted for information only. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The San Elijo Joint Powers Authority (SEJPA) owns and operates the San Elijo Water 
Reclamation Facility (SEWRF), San Elijo Recycled Water Utility, and is a co-owner of the San 
Elijo Ocean Outfall. The SEJPA also manages several related service programs to support the 
cities of Encinitas and Solana Beach, as well as other local government agencies.  
 
Programs operated by the SEJPA include: 

 

 Wastewater Treatment 

 Laboratory  

 Ocean Outfall 

 Cardiff Sanitary Division 

 Encinitas Sanitary Division 

 Encinitas Services 

 Solana Beach Pump Stations  

 Solana Beach Services 

 Recycled Water 

 Del Mar 21st Pump Station 
 
In providing these services, the SEJPA seeks to accomplish its mission in an environmentally, 
socially, and fiscally responsible manner. Each of the above programs is funded by the 
customer base that is served and cost allocations are applied based on actual flows treated or 
level of effort provided. Operational funding collected but not spent is returned to the 
contributing agencies. The total operating budget for the Fiscal Year (FY 2015-16) was 
$5,686,149. 
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DISCUSSION 
 
The SEJPA manages and operates ten programs of which nine of these programs were active 
for FY 2015-16. Six of these programs completed the year under budget and three were 
approximately at budget. The City of Del Mar (21st Pump Station) was not active due to 
construction delays, and has been scheduled to launch in mid FY 2016-17. 
 
The following information is the actual expense for FY 2015-16, which ended June 30, 2016. 
The final expense for FY 2015-16 includes an additional CalPERS contribution of $135,000 to 
proactively pay unfunded pension liability. This was a voluntary payment using unspent funds 
directed at reducing the pension liability and future costs. 
 
Below is a table of expense and budget variance for the mid FY 2015-16 by each of the SEJPA 
Programs:  
 
Summary by Program 
 

 
*Del Mar 21

st
 Pump Station, Budget amount $74,981, not included as program was postponed to FY 2016-17 due to 

construction delays. 

 
Overall, as an agency, the SEJPA was 4.6% under the budget or $260,071 and met the 
Member and other Government agencies’ rate expectations.   
 
 
Wastewater Treatment 
 

 
 

Final * Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Program FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Wastewater Treatment 2,520,018      2,575,466      (55,448)          97.8%

Laboratory 442,066         442,046         20                  100.0%

Ocean Outfall 447,053         522,957         (75,904)          85.5%

Cardiff Sanitary Division 194,152         233,399         (39,247)          83.2%

Encinitas Sanitary Division 115,388         141,735         (26,347)          81.4%

Encinitas Services 29,702           29,208           494                101.7%

Solana Beach Pump Stations 240,385         293,274         (52,889)          82.0%

Solana Beach Services 9,028             9,135             (107)               98.8%

Recycled Water 1,353,305      1,363,948      (10,643)          99.2%

Total Active SEJPA Programs 5,351,097      5,611,168      (260,071)        95.4%

Final * Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Expense Category FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Personnel 1,403,665      1,268,245      135,420         110.7%

Supplies & Services 1,112,571      1,232,621      (120,050)        90.3%

Capital Outlay 3,783             13,000           (9,217)            29.1%

Contingency -                 61,600           (61,600)          0.0%

Total Wastewater Treatment 2,520,018      2,575,466      (55,448)          97.8%
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This program is the cost center for all operations and maintenance activities for wastewater 
treatment at the San Elijo Water Reclamation Facility. Activities include wastewater treatment 
for the cities of Encinitas and Solana Beach as well as the Rancho Santa Fe Community 
Services Districts, with the effluent being recycled or disposed to the ocean. Wastewater 
biosolids are treated and dewatered, then hauled by contractor to Arizona for beneficial reuse 
through land application. 
 
Wastewater Treatment is under budget by $55,448 or 2.2%. Personnel expense exceeded 
budget due higher than anticipated labor charged to Wastewater Treatment and the voluntary 
contribution to the CalPERS pension liability. The Personnel expense was offset by unspent 
budgeted amounts in Supplies & Services, Capital Outlay, and Contingency.   
 
 
Laboratory 
 

 
The laboratory located at the San Elijo Water Reclamation Facility provides analytical 
laboratory services for the SEJPA’s wastewater and recycled water programs as well as to 
other entities through contract agreements. For the Fiscal Year 2015-16, contract agreements 
include the Fairbanks Ranch Community Services District, the Rancho Santa Fe Community 
Services District, the Santa Fe Valley Community Services District, and the Whispering Palms 
Community Services District. The Laboratory program completed the year at budget. 
 
Ocean Outfall 
 

 
This program provides a cost center for all operation and maintenance services related to the 
ocean outfall system. These activities include effluent pump station operations and 
maintenance; ocean monitoring; sampling and testing; and annual outfall inspection. As the 
outfall capacity is shared through an agreement with the City of Escondido, all operations and 
maintenance costs are shared on the basis of actual usage (measured by discharged flows). 
Capital improvement project costs are shared based on owned capacity (79% City of 
Escondido and 21% SEJPA). 
 
 

Final * Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Expense Category FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Personnel 395,486         385,782         9,704             102.5%

Supplies & Services 46,580           50,264           (3,684)            92.7%

Capital Outlay -                 2,500             (2,500)            0.0%

Contingency -                 3,500             (3,500)            0.0%

Total Laboratory 442,066         442,046         20                  100.0%

Final * Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Expense Category FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Personnel 291,507         273,584         17,923           106.6%

Supplies & Services 155,378         220,873         (65,495)          70.3%

Capital Outlay 168                13,000           (12,832)          1.3%

Contingency -                 15,500           (15,500)          0.0%

Total Ocean Outfall 447,053         522,957         (75,904)          85.5%
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Ocean Outfall was under budget by $75,904. Personnel expense is greater than budget as a 
result of the additional CalPERS contribution. Lower than planned engineering and contractor 
services plus unspent Capital Outlay and Contingency provided 14.5% positive savings. 
 
Cardiff Sanitary Division 
 

 
Under this program, the SEJPA provides pump station maintenance and operation services to 
the City of Encinitas, Cardiff Sanitary Division (CSD). These facilities include the Cardiff, 
Coast Highway, and Olivenhain pump stations. The actual costs incurred are borne solely by 
the CSD. 
 
This program was under budget by $39,247 primarily due to lower than anticipated Personnel 
and unused Contingency.   
 
 
Encinitas Sanitary Division 
 

 
Pump station maintenance and operation services are provided to the City of Encinitas, 
Encinitas Sanitary Division (ESD), for the Moonlight Beach pump station. The actual costs 
incurred are the responsibility of ESD.   
 
The program is under budget by $26,347. Less than planned Personnel expense and unspent 
Contingency provided the positive variance.  
 
  

Final Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Expense Category FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Personnel 128,280         149,689         (21,409)          85.7%

Supplies & Services 65,872           69,810           (3,938)            94.4%

Capital Outlay -                 -                 -                 

Contingency -                 13,900           (13,900)          0.0%

Total Cardiff Sanitary Division 194,152         233,399         (39,247)          83.2%

Final Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Expense Category FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Personnel 52,735           63,555           (10,820)          83.0%

Supplies & Services 62,654           65,180           (2,526)            96.1%

Capital Outlay -                 -                 -                 

Contingency -                 13,000           (13,000)          0.0%

Total Encinitas Sanitary Division 115,388         141,735         (26,347)          81.4%
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Encinitas Services 
 

 
 
The SEJPA provides maintenance and operation services to the City of Encinitas that includes 
the Urban Runoff Treatment Facility, the Phoebe Storm Water Pump Station, and the Storm 
Drain Sediment Drying and Disposal program. The actual costs incurred are paid for by the 
City of Encinitas. This program was approximately on budget. 
 
 
Solana Beach Pump Stations 
 

 
This program provides pump station maintenance and operation services to the City of Solana 
Beach (SB). These facilities include the Eden Gardens, Solana Beach, San Elijo Hills, and 
Fletcher Cove pump stations, as well as the Storm Drain Sediment Drying & Disposal 
Program. The actual expense incurred is paid by the City of Solana Beach. 
 
This program is under budget due to lower than planned Personnel expense, Repairs & 
Maintenance, Utilities and unused Contingency funds.   
 
  

Final * Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Expense Category FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Personnel 22,466           21,635           831                103.8%

Supplies & Services 7,236             7,573             (337)               95.5%

Capital Outlay -                 -                 -                 

Contingency -                 -                 -                 

Total Encinitas Services 29,702           29,208           494                101.7%

Final * Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Expense Category FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Personnel 154,370         165,911         (11,541)          93.0%

Supplies & Services 86,015           108,863         (22,848)          79.0%

Capital Outlay -                 -                 -                 

Contingency -                 18,500           (18,500)          0.0%

Total Solana Beach Pump Stations 240,385         293,274         (52,889)          82.0%
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Solana Beach Services 
 

 
This program provides generator services to the Solana Beach City Hall and the Lomas Santa 
Fe Fire Station. The program came at budget. 
 
Recycled Water 
 
The SEJPA owns and operates a recycled water utility which wholesales recycled water to the 
Santa Fe Irrigation District, the San Dieguito Water District, the City of Del Mar, and the 
Olivenhain Municipal Water District, as well as provides direct water sales to the Encinitas 
Ranch Golf Authority (ERGA). SEJPA’s recycled water program typically delivers between 
1,500 and 1,700 acre-feet per year (AFY) of recycled water to its retail partners. For FY 2015-
16, the SEJPA budgeted 1,530 acre feet (AF); the program delivered 1,368 AF or 10.6% less 
than budget. This less than planned use of recycled water was most likely due to drought 
messaging. Local customers that use the recycled water for landscape irrigation include the 
Encinitas Ranch Golf Course, Lomas Santa Fe Executive and Country Club Golf Courses, Ecke 
YMCA, Encinitas Community Park, Del Mar Fairgrounds, local schools, parks, businesses, and 
street/freeway landscape. 
 
Summary of Recycled Water Expenses: 

 
The total expense for Recycled Water was slightly less than budgeted expense. Personnel 
expense was over budget by 13.2% in part due to coordination of Capital projects that will result 
in increased water sales in future years, and the additional voluntary CalPERS contribution to 
the pension liability. Capital Outlay exceeded budget as a result of the required refurbishment of 
three filter feed pumps.  
 
 
  

Final * Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Expense Category FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Personnel 5,769             5,244             525                110.0%

Supplies & Services 3,259             3,891             (632)               83.8%

Capital Outlay -                 -                 -                 

Contingency -                 -                 -                 

Total Solana Beach Services 9,028             9,135             (107)               98.8%

Final * Budget Over/(Under) % Budget

Expense Category FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16 Budget Spent

Personnel 572,173         505,658         66,515           113.2%

Supplies & Services 738,491         852,290         (113,799)        86.6%

Capital Outlay 42,640           6,000             36,640           710.7%

Contingency -                 -                 -                 

Total Recycled Water 1,353,305      1,363,948      (10,643)          99.2%
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Debt Service 
 
The SEJPA has four long-term loans to fund its capital investments. The 2011 Refunding Bonds 
refinanced two existing loans for the Wastewater program in December 2011 resulting in about 
$1.2 million savings. The Recycled Water Program was originally funded by the State Loan 
Payable. The Private Placement Loan provided for the construction of advance water treatment, 
and the Santa Fe Irrigation loan funded the purchase of a recycled water pipeline that expanded 
the distribution system. Below is a table showing the principal balances paid on each loan: 

 
All of the SEJPA’s loans were paid timely and in accordance with the loan provisions. 
 
 
Overall Summary 
 
Overall, the SEJPA was below budget by $260,071 or 4.6%. Wastewater Treatment, Pump 
Stations, Ocean Outfall, and Storm Drains programs were under budget by $249,428 or 5.9%. 
Recycled Water expenditures were $10,643 or 0.8% under budget. All debt service payments 
were paid according to the loan agreements. Each program absorbed a portion of the $135,000 
voluntary contribution to the CalPERS pension liability. This action is estimated to save the 
agency approximately $27,000 in interest expense using a 7.5% discount rate over a five year 
amortization period. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Paul Kinkel 
Director of Finance and Administration 

Original Paid FY 2015-16

Long-Term Loans Balance To Date Balance

Refunding Revenue Bonds 24,465,000$     (20,145,000)$  4,320,000$       

State Loan Payable (SRF) 12,633,522       (8,755,764)      3,877,758         

Private Placement Loan (AWP) 2,000,000         (318,740)         1,681,260         

SFID (Santa Fe Irrigation Pipeline) 526,149            (80,806)           445,343            

Total Loans 39,624,671$     (29,300,310)$  10,324,361$     
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 AGENDA ITEM NO. 14 
 
 
 SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 November 14, 2016 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 San Elijo Joint Powers Authority 
 
FROM: General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: EXTENSION OF SURPLUS RECYCLED WATER AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY (SEJPA), THE SAN 
DIEGUITO WATER DISTRICT (SDWD), AND THE ENCINITAS RANCH GOLF 
AUTHORITY (ERGA) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Authorize the General Manager to execute the proposed Surplus Recycled 
Water Agreement; and 
 

2. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The San Elijo Joint Powers Authority (SEJPA) operates a recycled water utility that sells 
recycled water to four water purveyors; Santa Fe Irrigation District (SFID), San Dieguito Water 
District (SDWD), Olivenhain Municipal Water District (OMWD) and the City of Del Mar. These 
purveyors in turn sell the recycled water to customers within the cities of Del Mar, Encinitas, 
and Solana Beach. The SEJPA owns a majority of the recycled water infrastructure system 
including treatment, storage, and pipelines, and pays a usage fee based on the number of 
units transferred through non-owned infrastructure. The water districts own the recycled water 
meter that measures the customer’s usage and provide customer billing and other needed 
administrative services. The agencies work collaboratively to provide a seamless utility and 
customer service to the community, as well as to meet regulatory quality control and oversight 
requirements.  
 
In May 2011, the SEJPA, SDWD, and Encinitas Ranch Golf Authority (ERGA) approved an 
agreement to provide surplus recycled water service to the Encinitas Ranch Golf Course. ERGA 
is the managing authority for the Golf Course, which is a public golf course owned by the City of 
Encinitas. The agreement provided benefits to all parties (ERGA, SDWD, and SEJPA). For 
ERGA, the agreement reduced the cost of recycled water to the golf course, but changed the 
service from non-interruptible to interruptible. Interruptible service was acceptable to ERGA as 
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the golf course has the ability to store large volumes of water onsite within their storage ponds 
and owns the pump station that provides water pressure to the golf course irrigation system.  
SDWD and SEJPA benefit as the agreement allows SEJPA to control delivery of recycled water 
to the ERGA storage ponds, which provides more stable operations of the San Elijo Water 
Reclamation Facility and associated recycled water distribution system. The golf course can 
then use the stored water during periods of high demand thus reducing its demand impact to the 
overall recycled water system and allowing recycled water service to more SDWD customers.  
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The ERGA surplus recycled water agreement between SEJPA, SDWD, and ERGA is set to 
expire on June 30, 2017. The parties have prepared an agreement amendment to extend 
interruptible recycled water service until June 30, 2024. At the September 2016 Board meeting, 
Staff presented this proposed agreement extension and highlighted the benefits that this 
agreement provides to all parties (SEJPA, SDWD, and ERGA). The proposed amendment was 
approved by the ERGA Board of Directors on September 27, 2016. The proposed agreement 
amendment will allow SEJPA to continue to receive full access to golf course water storage in 
exchange for a fixed annual price for recycled water to the golf course. The golf course will use 
additional water with the understanding that the water is still an interruptible supply and the 
SEJPA may turn off the water supply if demands in the system increase above production 
levels. The amendment also provides an easement allowance for recycled water infrastructure 
to facilitate recycled water service to the Encinitas Ranch Community Association, Fox Point 
Farms, and City of Encinitas recreational trails.  
 
The attached amendment is proposed to continue delivering a minimum of 200 acre feet of 
water to the golf course on an annual basis for each of the next 7 years. The agreement 
provides for annual cost increase of 4% per year according to the following schedule: 
 

Contract Year Annual Increase Annual Water Cost Quarterly Payment 

2017-18 4% $258,830 $64,708 

2018-19 4% $269,183 $67,296 

2019-20 4% $279,951 $69,988 

2020-21 4% $291,149 $72,787 

2021-22 4% $302,794 $75,699 

2022-23 4% $314,906 $78,727 

2023-24 4% $327,503 $81,876 

 
 
 
The annual 4% increase is supported by the June 24, 2016 Recycled Water Rate Review and 
Update prepared by Raftelis Financial Consultants and accepted by the Board at the September 
2016 meeting. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
This amendment provides $2,044,316 of revenue to the SEJPA over 7 years, with the option for 
a second 7-year term for an additional $2,690,181.  
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It is therefore recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Authorize the General Manager to execute the proposed Surplus Recycled 
Water Agreement; and 
 

2. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
     
Michael T. Thornton, P.E. 
General Manager 
 
 
Attachment 1: 2011 Surplus Recycled Water Agreement between the San Elijo Joint 

Powers Authority, San Dieguito Water District, and Encinitas Ranch Golf 
Authority 

 
Attachment 2: Proposed 2016 Surplus Recycled Water Agreement between the San 

Elioj Joint Powers Authority, San Dieguito Water District, and Encinitas 
Ranch Golf Authority 

 



ATTACHMENT 1
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ATTACHMENT 2 

 

SURPLUS RECYCLED WATER AGREEMENT BETWEEN SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS 
AUTHORITY, SAN DIEGUITO WATER DISTRICT, AND ENCINITAS RANCH GOLF 

AUTHORITY 

This Surplus Recycled Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into by and 
among the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority, a joint powers authority organized and operated 
pursuant to California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. (“SEJPA”), the San Dieguito 
Water District, a municipal water district (“DISTRICT”), and Encinitas Ranch Golf Authority 
(“CUSTOMER”), who may collectively be referred to as the “Parties” or individually, as a “Party.” 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the SEJPA is a producer of recycled water in accordance with the 
requirements of Order No. 2000-10, Master Recycled Water Permit for the production and 
purveyance of Recycled Water for San Elijo Joint Powers Authority, San Dieguito Water District, 
Santa Fe Irrigation District, and City of Del Mar as adopted by the California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, San Diego Region (“Regional Water Board”) on March 8, 2000, which 
incorporate California’s Title 22 Regulations, and amendments thereto; and 

WHEREAS, the SEJPA anticipates that it can produce more recycled water than can be 
beneficially used by its existing customers during the term of this AGREEMENT; and  

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT is responsible for the purvey of potable and recycled water 
within its service area; and 

WHEREAS, the CUSTOMER desires recycled water for use on the Encinitas Ranch Golf 
Course, a municipal golf course of approximately 164 acres that is located within the City of 
Encinitas and within the DISTRICT’s service area, and incorporated by reference herein (the 
“Property”) and has facilities necessary to accept and store substantial quantities of recycled 
water on the Property for its subsequent use, and therefore CUSTOMER is uniquely situated to 
accept recycled water service on an interruptible basis; and 

WHEREAS, the CUSTOMER has an existing recycled water storage system consisting 
of open surface ponds that have in excess of 10 million gallons of surplus storage capacity that 
could be available for peak flow storage of recycled water during the wet season (November 
through April) and recycled water irrigation storage in dry season (May through October); and 

WHEREAS, the SEJPA has the ability to provide its surplus recycled water to the 
Property on behalf of the DISTRICT; and 

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT consents to the provision of recycled water service to the 
Property by the SEJPA; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties, recognizing that the use of reclaimed water is a positive and 
achievable future means of helping to meet the growing water demands within the DISTRICT 
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and Southern California, have determined that it is in their mutual best interests for the SEJPA 
to deliver its surplus recycled water to the Property on the DISTRICT’s behalf pursuant to the 
terms of this AGREEMENT; 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these recitals and the covenants contained 
herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

The subject matter of this AGREEMENT is the mutual rights and obligations of the 
Parties with respect to the sale and delivery of surplus recycled water by the SEJPA, on behalf 
of the DISTRICT, to CUSTOMER for the Property.  This AGREEMENT is not intended to cover, 
and does not include or authorize, the sale and delivery of recycled water to other DISTRICT 
customers.   

SECTION 2. DELIVERY OF RECYCLED WATER 

The SEJPA shall, on the DISTRICT’s behalf, transport and deliver surplus recycled 
water to the CUSTOMER for use on the Property in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this AGREEMENT.  The DISTRICT hereby designates the SEJPA its agent for providing 
recycled water to the CUSTOMER on the DISTRICT’s behalf as stated in this AGREEMENT.  
To optimize pumping costs, the SEJPA shall first attempt to deliver the recycled water to the 
CUSTOMER on the weekends and holidays; and during the hours of 8 p.m. to 6 a.m., Monday 
through Friday, as this provides the lowest energy costs to the SEJPA.  Delivery of recycled 
water may also occur during the hours of 6 a.m. and 8 p.m. to the CUSTOMER, but this will be 
at the sole discretion of the SEJPA.  

SECTION 3. OWNERSHIP, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE  RESPONSIBILITIES 

The SEJPA shall be responsible for the operation and maintenance of its recycled water 
treatment, storage and distribution system up to the recycled water service meter.  The SEJPA 
shall be responsible for the operation, maintenance, and reading of the service meter.  The 
SEJPA shall be responsible for invoicing the CUSTOMER and reporting recycled water usage 
to the DISTRICT. 

The SEJPA shall not be responsible for the installation, operation, and maintenance of 
any irrigation pipelines, pumps, sprinklers, storage facilities, and appurtenances located 
downstream of the SEJPA’s recycled water service meter. CUSTOMER shall be solely 
responsible for such infrastructure.  CUSTOMER shall also be responsible for compliance with 
any and all regulatory requirements associated with the storage of recycled water on the 
Property, and shall provide SEJPA with satisfactory evidence of such compliance, upon request. 

SECTION 4. RECYCLED WATER QUALITY 

SEJPA will provide CUSTOMER with nonpotable water that has been treated to Title 22 
standards for recycled water.  The SEJPA will only deliver reclaimed water that meets the 
requirements of the Water Reclamation Law, Water Code section 13500, et. seq., including 
section 13521 of the Water Code regarding statewide standards, and of ORDER NO. 2000-10 
MASTER RECYCLED WATER PERMIT, adopted by the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, San Diego Region, which incorporate California’s Title 22 Regulations. 
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SECTION 5. RECYCLED WATER QUANTITY 

The SEJPA shall deliver to the Property surplus recycled water produced by the SEJPA 
that remains available after the SEJPA has served the SEJPA’s other customers, including any 
amounts necessary for health and safety reasons. The SEJPA guarantees a minimum quantity 
to the Property of approximately 200 acre feet on an annual basis.  The CUSTOMER agrees 
that the actual amount of surplus recycled water delivered by the SEJPA to the Property may be 
more than this anticipated amount, but the SEJPA shall have no liability to the CUSTOMER for 
any differences between the anticipated amount of surplus recycled water to be delivered and 
the actual amount of surplus recycled water that is delivered to the Property.  Recycled water 
service to the Property may be reduced or interrupted on an hourly or daily basis if no surplus 
recycled water is available or anticipated to be available after the SEJPA has served the 
SEJPA’s other customers. 

The Parties understand and agree that this AGREEMENT shall not limit the SEJPA’s 
ability to enter into new or amended recycled water contracts, the SEJPA may do so at its sole 
discretion without any liability to the Parties pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

SECTION 6. RECYCLED WATER DELIVERY PRESSURE 

Surplus recycled water provided by the SEJPA at the DISTRICT’s recycled water meter 
for the Property shall be at a minimum of 25 psi.  At the SEJPA’s cost, new service connections 
can be added to the PROPERTY to improve or optimize the delivery of recycled water. 

SECTION 7. RECYCLED WATER STORAGE 

The CUSTOMER shall provide 10 million gallons of recycled water storage for mutual 
benefit for both the CUSTOMER and the SEJPA.  The storage system shall be comprised of 
existing water storage ponds located at the Encinitas Ranch Golf Course.  The ponds shall 
provide the CUSTOMER with irrigation water storage and provide the SEJPA with wet weather 
peak flow storage.  SEJPA shall have system control to allow recycled water into the storage 
system, provided that the Customer shall be responsible for ensuring that its storage capacity 
monitoring system is operational and providing accurate available capacity readings to SEJPA.  
The Customer understands that SEJPA shall rely on the accuracy of those readings, and the 
Customer shall be responsible to immediately notify SEJPA in the event the Customer's storage 
capacity monitoring system is not operational or for any reason is not providing accurate 
readings.  Once the storage system is full, no new water shall enter the storage system.  The 
Customer shall have final authority to determine if its storage system is full, and in such event 
shall immediately notify SEJPA.  The Customer shall be responsible to install and 
maintain sufficient safe guards at all times to ensure that the Customer's storage system is not 
over filled. 

 

SECTION 8. COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

The CUSTOMER is responsible for adhering to the SEJPA’s and the DISTRICT’s Rules 
and Regulations for Recycled Water Service, as may be amended from time to time, and to the 
applicable California Department of Health Services, the San Diego Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, and the San Diego County Department of Environmental Health regulations and 
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specifications. The CUSTOMER shall comply with such regulations and specifications during 
the term of this AGREEMENT. 

SECTION 9. CUSTOMER PAYMENT TO THE SEJPA FOR RECYCLED WATER PRICE  

The CUSTOMER shall pay the SEJPA a fixed annual cost for the delivery of surplus 
recycled water in accordance with this AGREEMENT.  The cost of water is as follows: 

Contract Year Annual Increase Annual Water Cost Quarterly Payment 

2017-18 4% $258,830 $64,708 

2018-19 4% $269,183 $67,296 

2019-20 4% $279,951 $69,988 

2020-21 4% $291,149 $72,787 

2021-22 4% $302,794 $75,699 

2022-23 4% $314,906 $78,727 

2023-24 4% $327,503 $81,876 

 

The Contract Year shall begin July 1 and end June 30.  CUSTOMER shall make quarterly 
payments to the SEJPA by the 3rd Monday of each July, October, January, and April for each 
contract year of this agreement. 

 
SECTION 10. CONSTRUCTION UNDER CORTESE-KNOX-HERTZBERG ACT OF 2000 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that this AGREEMENT and services provided 
hereunder are for the purposes of the SEJPA providing surplus recycled water on behalf of the 
DISTRICT to the Property, and it is not subject to Government Code section 56133 relating to 
the provision of exterritorial services. 

SECTION 11. ACCESS TO RECORDS 

The Parties shall keep and maintain proper books and records.  Such records shall 
include, but not be limited to, all entries concerning the quantity and quality of recycled water 
delivered to the CUSTOMER by the SEJPA on behalf of the DISTRICT during the term of this 
AGREEMENT, all tests performed by or on behalf of a Party concerning the quality of recycled 
water, all reports and associated records required by Order No. 2000-10, all complaints, 
investigations, or other reports associated with the production and delivery of recycled water, 
and all cost information, capital expenditures, maintenance records, and other financial data 
associated with the production and delivery of recycled water to the DISTRICT.  All such 
records except those exempt from disclosure by law shall, upon written request, be made 
available and subject to inspection by any duly authorized representative of any Party, the 
DISTRICT, the San Diego County Water Authority, the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California, the California and San Diego County Departments of Health Services, and the 
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California Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region, within ten (10) days after receipt of 
such notification. 

SECTION 12. NOTICE 

Notices required or permitted under this AGREEMENT shall be sufficiently given if in 
writing and if either served personally upon the party to whom it is directed or by deposit in the 
United States mail, postage prepaid, certified, return receipt requested, addressed to the Parties 
at the following addresses: 

DISTRICT: San Dieguito Water District 
160 Calle Magdalena 
Encinitas, CA 92024 
Attention: General Manager 
 

SEJPA: San Elijo Joint Powers Authority  
2695 Manchester Avenue 
Cardiff by the Sea, CA  92007 
Attention:  General Manager 

 
CUSTOMER: Encinitas Ranch Golf Authority 
 505 South Vulcan Avenue 
 Encinitas, CA  92024 

 
It shall be the sole responsibility of each party to this AGREEMENT to promptly notify 

the other of any change of title and/or address as long as this AGREEMENT remains in effect. 

The Parties agree that the attorney for a party listed above shall have the authority to 
deliver notices on such Party’s behalf to the other Parties. 

If notice is personally served on a Party in compliance with this section, it shall be 
deemed delivered, given and received on the date of service.  If notice is mailed to  Party in 
compliance with this section, it shall be deemed delivered, given and received upon the earlier 
of:  (i) four (4) calendar days from the date of deposit in the United States mail, or (ii) the date of 
receipt as indicated on the return receipt. 

SECTION 13. AMENDMENTS 

This AGREEMENT may not be amended, changed or modified except by a writing duly 
executed by all of the Parties hereto. 

SECTION 14. ASSIGNMENT 

Neither this AGREEMENT nor any interest therein nor any monies due or to become 
due thereunder shall be assigned, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of without the prior 
written consent of the parties to this AGREEMENT, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 

SECTION 15. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This AGREEMENT shall become effective upon the signature of the CUSTOMER, 
DISTRICT, and the SEJPA. 
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SECTION 16. TERM OF THE AGREEMENT 

The term of this AGREEMENT shall commence on July 1, 2017, unless earlier 
terminated by any Party pursuant to Section 17.  The Parties may agree to an optional 
extension of the term of this AGREEMENT for seven (7) additional years.  The terms and 
conditions of the optional seven (7) year extension shall remain the same as to the first seven 
(7) year agreement.  Any Party requesting the optional extension of term shall serve written 
notice of such request on all other Parties no later than January 1, 2024.  The other Parties shall 
each serve written notice within sixty (60) calendar days thereafter stating whether or not they 
agree to the optional extension of term.  If all Parties agree to the optional extension of term, 
such agreement shall be stated in a written amendment to this AGREEMENT.  If any Party in its 
sole discretion rejects the optional extension of term, this AGREEMENT shall expire on June 
30, 2024, unless earlier terminated by any Party pursuant to Section 17.   

 
SECTION 17. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

The SEJPA may terminate this AGREEMENT upon one hundred eight (180) days notice 
if treatment standards change such that upgraded treatment is required and recycled water 
cannot feasibly be produced and delivered meeting those standards.  The SEJPA may 
terminate this AGREEMENT upon thirty (30) days notice should the CUSTOMER or the 
DISTRICT breach their respective obligations in any material respect, to include: (1) the 
CUSTOMER repeatedly misuses the recycled water; (2) the CUSTOMER repeatedly fails to pay 
for the recycled water; (3) the CUSTOMER fails to accept the recycled water as required; and, 
(4) the CUSTOMER fails to maintain necessary facilities. 

The CUSTOMER may terminate this AGREEMENT upon thirty (30) days notice should 
the SEJPA breach its obligations in any material respect and may terminate this AGREEMENT 
without reason upon one hundred eight (180) days notice. 

SECTION 18. BINDING EFFECT 

This AGREEMENT shall be binding upon the Parties according to its terms and their 
respective successors in interest and permitted assigns. 

SECTION 19. INDEMNIFICATION 

The SEJPA agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the DISTRICT and the 
CUSTOMER from any and all claims for damage arising out of or related to the SEJPA’s 
negligent or intentional acts or omissions in the operation and maintenance of the San Elijo 
Water Reclamation Facility and the recycled water distribution facilities upstream of the 
DISTRICT’s meter. 

The CUSTOMER agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the SEJPA and its 
member agencies, directors, officers, consultants, agents, and employees from any and all 
claims for damage, suits, or other demands arising out of or related to the CUSTOMER’s 
negligent or intentional acts or omissions in the operation and maintenance of the 
CUSTOMER’s facilities for distribution of the recycled water including its use of such recycled 
water, and in the event of any third-party claim or litigation relating to this AGREEMENT. 

The DISTRICT agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the SEJPA and its 
member agencies, directors, officers, consultants, agents, and employees from any and all 
claims for damage, suits, or other demands arising out of or related to the DISTRICT’s negligent 
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or intentional acts or omissions pertaining, to related to, or in any way connected to the 
operation and maintenance of the CUSTOMER’s facilities for distribution of the recycled water 
including its use of such recycled water, and in the event of any third-party claim or litigation 
relating to this AGREEMENT. 

This indemnity paragraph is not intended by the Parties to waive any legal rights for 
defenses and immunities and other legal safeguards and protections from liability which are 
granted to public agencies and their employees under the California Tort Claims Act.  The 
parties’ indemnification, defense and hold harmless obligations pursuant to this AGREEMENT 
shall survive the expiration or termination of the AGREEMENT.   

SECTION 20. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS; NO VESTED RIGHTS 

It is hereby expressly understood and agreed that neither the DISTRICT nor the 
CUSTOMER by execution of this AGREEMENT and the exercise of the rights granted to them 
by this AGREEMENT shall not acquire any vested right to recycled water, and shall not acquire 
any vested right, title, or interest in or to the SEJPA’s wastewater treatment facilities, recycled 
water distribution system, or any other SEJPA facilities.  The SEJPA expressly reserves all of its 
rights except as expressly provided otherwise herein. 

SECTION 21. ATTORNEY’S FEES 

If any arbitration proceeding or action at law is brought to enforce or interpret the 
provisions of this AGREEMENT, the prevailing party shall be entitled to a reasonable attorney’s 
fees and expert witnesses’ fees which may be set by the Court in the same action brought for 
that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which a Party may be entitled. 

SECTION 22. APPLICABLE LAW 

This AGREEMENT is entered into in the State of California and California law shall apply 
to the interpretation and construction of all of its provisions. 

SECTION 23. JURISDICTION, FORUM AND VENUE 

The proper jurisdiction, forum and venue for any claims, causes of action or other 
proceedings concerning this AGREEMENT shall be in the state and federal courts located in the 
State of California, County of San Diego.  The Parties agree not to bring any action or 
proceeding arising out of or relating to this AGREEMENT in any other jurisdiction, forum or 
venue.  The Parties hereby submit to personal jurisdiction in the State of California for the 
enforcement of this AGREEMENT and hereby waive any and all personal rights under the law 
of any state to object to jurisdiction within the State of California for the purposes of any legal 
action or proceeding to enforce this AGREEMENT, whether on the grounds of inconvenient 
forum or otherwise.  

SECTION 24. SEVERABILITY 

If any non-material provision of this AGREEMENT, or any portion of any such provision, 
is held to be unenforceable or invalid, the remaining provisions and portions shall nevertheless 
be carried into effect. 
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SECTION 25. REMEDIES 

All rights and remedies of the Parties are separate and cumulative, and no one of them, 
whether exercised or not, shall be deemed to be to the exclusion of or to limit or prejudice any 
other legal or equitable rights or remedies which the Parties may have, except as otherwise 
expressly limited herein.  Subject to the limitations or remedies imposed elsewhere in this 
AGREEMENT, the Parties shall not be deemed to have waived any of their rights or remedies 
hereunder, unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the Party to be bound.  No delay or 
omission on the part of any Party in exercising any right or remedy shall operate as a waiver of 
such right or remedy or any other right or remedy.  A waiver on any one occasion shall not be 
construed as a bar or waiver of any right or remedy on any future occasion. No waiver or any 
rights under this AGREEMENT shall be binding unless it is in writing signed by the party waiving 
such rights.   

SECTION 26. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY 

Unless otherwise expressly stated herein, this AGREEMENT creates rights and duties 
only between the Parties, and third-party is or shall be deemed to be or shall have any rights as 
a third-party beneficiary nor shall any third-party have the right to enforce any provisions of this 
AGREEMENT. 

SECTION 27. HEADINGS 

This section headings contained in this AGREEMENT are for convenience only and are 
not part of this AGREEMENT, and do not in any way interpret, limit or amplify the scope, extent 
or intent of this AGREEMENT, or any of the provisions of this AGREEMENT. 

SECTION 28. COUNTERPARTS 

This AGREEMENT may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement, and the 
signature of any Party to any counterpart shall be deemed a signature to, and may be appended 
to, any other counterpart. 

SECTION 29. FACSIMILE OR ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION OF SIGNATURES 

Upon execution of this AGREEMENT by each Party, a photocopied, facsimile and/or 
electronic transmission of each Party’s signatures may be delivered to the other Party and used 
in place of original signatures on this AGREEMENT with the same force and effect as if the 
countersigned originals of this AGREEMENT had been delivered by each Party to the other 
Parties.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that they intend to and shall each be bound by 
such signatures on the photocopied, facsimile and/or electronic transmission of this 
AGREEMENT.  The Parties further acknowledge and agree that they are aware that each Party 
will rely on their respective signatures on the photocopied, facsimile and/or electronic 
transmission of this AGREEMENT and hereby waive any and all defenses to enforcement of the 
terms of this AGREEMENT based on the form of signature.   

SECTION 30. COOPERATION OF THE PARTIES 

In any case where the approval or consent of a Party hereto is required, requested or 
otherwise to be given under this AGREEMENT, such Party shall not unreasonably delay or 
withhold its approval or consent. 
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SECTION 31. CONSTRUING THE CONTRACT 

In the event of a dispute under this AGREEMENT, no Party shall be deemed to be the 
Party who caused the uncertainty to exist and the prescriptions of Civil Code Section 1654 shall 
not be applicable to such a dispute under this AGREEMENT. 

SECTION 32. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties hereto with 
respect to the subject matter hereof superseding all negotiations, prior discussions and 
preliminary AGREEMENTS and understandings, written or oral.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT to be 
executed on ________________. 

 

CUSTOMER 

By:       

Its:       

 

 

 

SAN DIEGUITO WATER DISTRICT 

By:       

Its:       

 

 

SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

By:       

Its:  Chair of the Board 
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EXHIBIT A 
Easement 
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RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 

 

San Elijo Joint Powers Authority 

 

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

 

San Elijo Joint Powers Authority 

2695 Manchester Avenue 

Cardiff, CA 92007 

 
NO FEE REQUIRED PER 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 6103 

 

DEED TRANSFER TAX: $ 0 
EXEMPT UNDER SEC. 11922 OF 

REVENUE TAXATION CODE 

 

 

 

 

EASEMENT DEED 
 

Parcel No. ____________________ 

 

For valuable consideration, ENCINITAS RANCH GOLF AUTHORITY, a California nonprofit 

mutual benefit corporation, as Grantor, hereby grants to SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY, a 

joint powers authority created under California Government Code Section 6502,  and San Dieguito Water 

District, as Grantees, jointly and severally, an easement of right-of-way twenty (20) feet in width over, 

under, and across the lands hereinafter described, together with the right to from time to time construct, 

reconstruct, install, inspect, maintain, replace, remove, and use facilities of the type described herein 

(“Easement”). 

 

The lands in which said Easement is hereby granted are situated in the City of Encinitas, County 

of San Diego, State of California, and are more particularly described in the Legal Description dated 

[insert date], attached hereto as Attachment “A” and incorporated by reference. 

 

Grantor and Grantees agree that facilities constructed within the Easement shall consist of 

recycled water distribution pipes and appurtenances that are more particularly described in the 

[construction agreement or scope], attached hereto as Attachment “B” and incorporated by reference. 

 

Grantor and Grantees further agree that no other easement or easements shall be granted within 

any portion of the Easement by Grantor to any person, firm, or corporation without the prior written 

consent of Grantees. 

 

Grantor and Grantees further agree that Grantor shall not erect or construct, or permit to be 

erected or constructed, any building, fences, walls, or other structures of any kind and no trees shall be 

placed, planted, or maintained within any portion of the Easement, and no shrubs or other, plants or 

vegetation shall be placed, planted, or maintained within any portion of the Easement which is used as a 

road, and that no changes in the alignment or grading of any such road shall be made without prior written 

consent of Grantees. 

 

Grantor and Grantees further agree that Grantor shall not drill any well or wells within the limits 

of the Easement. 

 

Grantor and Grantees further agree that Grantor shall not increase or decrease or permit to be 
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increased or decreased, the ground elevations of the Easement existing at the time this Easement Deed is 

executed without the prior written consent of Grantees. 

 

Grantor and Grantees further agree that Grantees shall have the right to clear and keep clear the 

Easement from buildings and structures. 

 

The provisions of this Easement Deed shall inure to the benefit of and bind the successors and 

assigns of Grantor and of Grantees. 

 

 "Grantor" 
 

Encinitas Ranch Golf Authority 
 

 

Dated: _____________________  By:__________________________________________ 

 

  Its:_______________________________________ 

 

 

Dated: _____________________  By:__________________________________________ 

 

  Its:_______________________________________ 

 

 

 

 “Grantees” 
 

          San Elijo Joint Powers Authority  

 

 

Dated: _____________________  ___________________________________________ 

          By: Michael T. Thornton, P.E.     

           General Manager 

 

          San Dieguito Water District  

 

 

Dated: _____________________  ___________________________________________ 

          By: Bill O’Donnell 

           General Manager 
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CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )  

 ) ss: 

COUNTY OF [COUNTY]  )  

 

On [Date], before me, [Notary Name] , Notary Public, personally appeared [Name of person] , 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 

subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in 

his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature on the instrument the person(s), 

or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct.  

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

  

 Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who 

signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that 

document. 
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CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

 

 This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the Grant of Right of Way  

dated __________________________ from _______________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________  

to the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority, a joint powers authority created under California Government 

Code section 6502, is hereby accepted by order of Board of Director's Resolution No.____, dated 

__________, authorizing the General Manager to accept and record Grants of Right of Way on behalf of 

San Elijo Joint Powers Authority. 

 

SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

Dated __________________________  By        

  General Manager 
 

 
Project     

 

Water Atlas Page No. ___________ Checked by: _____________     Date: ______   
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CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

 

 This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the Grant of Right of Way  

dated __________________________ from _______________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________  

to the San Dieguito Water District is hereby accepted by order of Board of Director's Resolution No.____, 

dated __________, authorizing the General Manager to accept and record Grants of Right of Way on 

behalf of San Dieguito Water District. 

 

SAN DIEGUITO WATER DISTRICT 

 

Dated __________________________  By        

  General Manager 
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 AGENDA ITEM NO. 15 
 
 

SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM 

 
November 14, 2016 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 

 San Elijo Joint Powers Authority 
 
FROM: General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: WASTEWATER SERVICE AGREEMENT EXTENSION WITH THE RANCHO 

SANTA FE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Authorize the General Manager to execute the proposed agreement; and 
 

2. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
For nearly 35 years, the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority (SEJPA) has been providing 
wastewater treatment and disposal services to the Rancho Santa Fe Community Services 
District (Rancho CSD). In 1991, the SEJPA and Rancho CSD entered into a long-term 
agreement that provides 0.25 million gallons per day (MGD) of leased wastewater treatment 
and ocean disposal capacity by SEJPA to Rancho CSD. As part of this agreement, Rancho 
CSD is responsible to pay its allocated costs for operations and maintenance, capital costs 
associated with the 1991 SEJPA wastewater treatment upgrade project, and ongoing capital 
costs associated with SEJPA’s wastewater and outfall systems.  In addition, the agreement 
included a 33% supplement charge for the use of SEJPA assets, including land, easements, 
opportunity costs, and the like, both direct and indirect.  
 
This agreement between SEJPA and Ranch CSD expires in March 2020. Rancho CSD has 
expressed interest to continue receiving wastewater treatment and disposal services from 
SEJPA. The two agencies, and their respective attorneys, have been working to develop a 
new 20-year agreement that would supersede the existing agreement.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Rancho CSD desires to continue leasing wastewater and ocean outfall capacity from the 
SEJPA for an additional 20 years. Rancho CSD currently leases 4.76% of wastewater 
treatment capacity at the San Elijo Water Reclamation Facility (SEWRF) and approximately 
1% of the ocean outfall capacity. Rancho CSD proposed to maintain the current level of 
leased capacity. 
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Based on wastewater flow projections by the SEJPA’s member agencies, it is feasible and 
beneficial to the SEJPA to continue leasing wastewater and ocean outfall capacity to Rancho 
CSD. Wastewater flow from the SEJPA member agencies has declined over the last five 
years, resulting in average daily wastewater flows being lower by approximately 0.4 MGD, or 
15%, over this period. The flow reduction is likely a result of increased indoor water 
efficiencies and conservation by residents and businesses. This provides sufficient allowance 
to commit treatment and disposal capacity to Rancho CSD for an additional 20 years. 
Furthermore, treating Rancho CSD wastewater provides increased economy of scale for 
facility operations, maintenance, and asset replacement, which reduces cost to all parties. 
 
Staff has prepared a new lease agreement with Rancho CSD. The agreement is modeled 
from the recently executed Del Mar Wastewater Lease Agreement (July 2014). The 
agreement also includes flow measurement requirements that are consistent with those from 
the agreement between the City of Encinitas and Rancho CSD for cost sharing on the recently 
upgraded Olivenhain Pump Station.  
 
The most significant change between the existing and the proposed agreements is the 
elimination of a 33% supplement. Eliminating the supplement is consistent with other SEJPA 
wastewater and recycled water agreements, where only actual, definable costs incurred are 
included in the determination of the cost of service provided by the SEJPA.  
 
At this time, Staff requests the Board to authorize the General Manager to execute the new 
lease agreement. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
This agreement provides an estimated $5.0 million of revenue over the 20-year term for 
wastewater and disposal services provided to Ranch CSD. The first year of the agreement is 
anticipated to have a revenue value of $278,905.  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 

 
1. Authorize the General Manager to execute the proposed agreement; and 
 
2. Discuss and take action as appropriate. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Michael T. Thornton, P.E. 
General Manager 
 
 
Attachment 1: Capacity Lease Agreement between the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority and 

the Rancho Santa Fe Community Services District 
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Agreement No. _____ 

CAPACITY LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

THE SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY AND THE  

RANCHO SANTA FE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
 

WHEREAS, this agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the Rancho Santa Fe 

Community Services District (herein “Rancho”) and the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority (herein 

“SEJPA”), whose members are the Cities of Encinitas and Solana Beach, successors to the 

Cardiff and Solana Beach Sanitary Districts, respectively, under the June 25, 2008 “Restatement 

of Agreement Between Cardiff Sanitation District and Solana Beach Sanitation District 

Establishing the San Elijo Joint Powers Authority”;  

WHEREAS, on or about January 8, 1991, Rancho, the Cardiff Sanitation District (herein 

“Cardiff”), the Solana Beach Sanitary District (herein “Solana Beach”) and the SEJPA entered 

into a 30-year lease agreement, which expires March 20, 2020, entitled LEASE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CARDIFF SANITATION DISTRICT, THE SOLANA BEACH 

SANITATION DISTRICT, THE SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY AND THE 

RANCHO SANTA FE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (herein “1991 Lease”); 

WHEREAS, the 1991 Lease recognized that Rancho was getting the benefit of assets 

owned and controlled by the SEJPA, including, land, easements, opportunity costs, and the like, 

both direct and indirect (collectively, “Opportunity Costs”), all of which represent either 

investments by the SEJPA and its taxpayers or ratepayers and/or costs to the SEJPA not reflected 

in the flow and operation and maintenance charges to be charged to Rancho; 

WHEREAS, as part of the 1991 Lease, Rancho and the SEJPA agreed that it was fair and 

reasonable for Rancho to reimburse the SEJPA for its fair share of these Opportunity Costs, and 

included a reasonable estimate of Rancho’s fair share of these Opportunity Costs into the fee 

ATTACHMENT 1
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formula of the 1991 lease, in the form of a thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) 

supplement;  

WHEREAS, the parties agree that it is fair and reasonable to relieve Rancho from 

payment of future Opportunity Costs as set forth in the 1991 Lease because Rancho has 

maximized its utility from the Opportunity Costs throughout the first twenty-six years of the 

1991 Lease;   

WHEREAS, Rancho desires to continue leasing municipal sewage treatment capacity in 

the San Elijo Wastewater Treatment Facility and Ocean Outfall, in part to increase the 

availability of recycled water to the region;  

WHEREAS, SEJPA desire to lease such capacity and make available for sale increased 

quantities of recycled water; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree that it is fair and reasonable for Rancho to reimburse  the 

SEJPA for its fair share of the costs and risks of maintaining and operating the facilities 

necessary to make such capacity available, as described in the fee formula set forth in this 

Agreement;  

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto agree as follows:  

1.  Purpose and Intent.  

The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and it is the purpose and intent of this 

lease Agreement to replace the 1991 Lease with this Agreement. 

2. Termination of 1991 Lease. 

The 1991 Lease, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby cancelled and 

rescinded for all purposes. 
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3.   Payment of Rancho’s Outstanding Balance. 

As of the effective date of this agreement, Rancho and the SEJPA are in dispute 

over the payment of past capital costs under the 1991 Lease (the “Outstanding Balance”).  In 

light of this Agreement, and in an effort to maintain positive and productive relationships with its 

contracting parties, the SEJPA herein agrees to receive, and Rancho agrees to pay, an amount 

totaling One Hundred and Thirty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($138,000) as an agreed upon 

Outstanding Balance within 90 days of the approval of this Agreement.  

 

4. Lease of Capacity to Rancho.  

The SEJPA hereby leases to Rancho solely the right to utilize wastewater 

treatment capacity in the San Elijo Water Reclamation Facility and San Elijo Ocean Outfall 

(collectively, the Facility) on the terms and conditions set forth herein.   The wastewater 

treatment capacity leased is only a part of the capacity of the “Joint System” as defined in the 

Restatement as the San Elijo Water Pollution Control Facility, consisting of the land, the sewage 

treatment plant, the Escondido Regulator Structure and the San Elijo Ocean Outfall, as well as 

the San Elijo Water Reclamation Facility, the Oak Crest and Lomas Santa Fe Reservoirs, Lomas 

Santa Fe Booster Pump Station and the associated  recycled water distribution systems, and 

includes all other facilities, improvements, land and other works acquired, installed, operated, or 

maintained by the SEJPA.  Rancho has no rights in any portion of the Joint System except as 

expressly provided herein.  Rancho agrees that upon delivery of municipal wastewater to the 

SEJPA for treatment (which includes disposal per the above) under this agreement, the SEJPA 

shall have the sole right in the water produced within the meaning of Water Code section 1210. 

5. Ultimate or Maximum Capacity.  

The ultimate or maximum sewage treatment capacity leased to Rancho hereunder 
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is 0.250 million gallons per day (mgd) average daily dry weather flow, as measured over any 

continuous 30 day period. The maximum instantaneous flow permitted shall be 0.625 mgd, and 

may occur for a length of time not to exceed 30 minutes in any 24 hour period. Rancho is 

responsible for the measurement of its flow discharge to SEJPA treatment facilities. 

6. Effective Date and Term of Lease.  

The effective date of this agreement is July 1, 2016. The term of this lease shall be 

twenty (20) years, to expire on June 30, 2036. 

7. Lease and O&M payments.  

Payments from Rancho to SEJPA shall be comprised of two components, a Lease 

payment component and an O&M payment component.  Payments shall be made by Rancho on a 

quarterly basis beginning with the July to September 2016 quarter and continuing thereafter for 

the term of this agreement. 

The Lease component payment shall be $96,744 per year, payable in equal 

quarterly installments as outlined above.  The Lease payment component shall continue until the 

April-June 2020 quarterly Lease payment is made, at which point in time the Lease payment 

component shall expire, and Rancho shall have no obligation to make further Lease payments. 

The O&M payment component shall be payable in equal quarterly installments as 

outlined above. The actual O&M payment due each quarter shall be computed using the 

formulas set forth on Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  The O&M payment 

shall be inclusive of all of SEJPA’s wastewater treatment and disposal costs for Rancho’s 

proportional share of administrative management, operation and maintenance, and capital costs 

as set forth below: 

1. The SEJPA shall develop and adopt an Expenses budget for the coming fiscal 
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year (July 1 to June 30) prior to June 30. 

2. An estimate of flow for the coming fiscal year shall be determined for each 

agencies’ influent or effluent flow by using the average of the measured flow, 

during the most current calendar year (January 1 to December 31), from each 

of the respective agencies. 

3. A Unit Cost shall be determined by dividing the Expenses by the combined 

flows of each agency. 

4. Rancho shall then owe to the SEJPA its share of the Expenses (Annual 

Expense Payment), based upon its flow and the Unit Cost as determined 

hereinabove. 

5. An annual audit of the Expenses shall be prepared by the SEJPA prior to 

October 31
st
. Based upon this audit, and the measurement of the total annual 

flow of each agency for the fiscal year under consideration, adjustments, if 

required, shall be made to the Annual Expense Payment paid by Rancho to the 

SEJPA.     

 
8. Capacity to be Supplied Equally by Two Districts.  

The capacity provided under this lease Agreement shall be drawn equally from 

the capacity rights of the Cities of Encinitas and Solana Beach under the Restatement.  

9. Quality of Rancho Effluent.  

This lease Agreement entitles Rancho to deliver domestic (non-industrial) 

strength wastewater to the SEJPA treatment plant via the City of Encinitas transmission system 

and the Olivenhain pumping station, that conforms to the standards currently imposed or the 

standards reasonably imposed in the future from time to time by the SEJPA, after giving Rancho 
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at least 30 days written notice and an opportunity to be heard.   

This agreement does not allow for the discharge of brine (discharge high in total 

dissolved solids) or other high strength waste streams to the SEJPA treatment facilities.  Brine 

discharge shall only be allowed through a separate agreement or amendment to this agreement. 

Rancho shall be responsible for complying with the terms and conditions of the NPDES and 

recycled water permits issued to SEJPA, as amended from time to time and shall prohibit users 

of every kind and nature from discharging any sewage, wastewater or storm water which would 

be detrimental to the Joint Facilities or any part thereof.  

10. Meter to be Maintained by Rancho.  

The Rancho sewer system currently has 4 direct connections to Cardiff’s PC 1007 15” gravity 

sewer main.  Due to several technical conditions such as low flow or inaccessible manholes, it is 

not practical to install flow meters at all points of connection to the Cardiff system.  Rancho does 

have meters within its system that measure flow from its pump stations which eventually go into 

Cardiff’s system (Metered Flow).  However, there are parcels which do not flow through these 

pump stations and instead flow by gravity to Cardiff’s system (Unmetered Flow).  Therefore, the 

total flow to Cardiff from Rancho will be calculated as follows: 

A. Metered Flow - All flow going through the Rancho pump stations will be metered and 

reported to Cardiff on a monthly basis. Flow reports shall be submitted by the 15
th

 day of the 

following month.  

B. Unmetered Flow - The flow from parcels in Rancho which do not flow through a Rancho 

pump station shall be calculated as follows.   

 Monthly, the number of unmetered parcels flowing to the Cardiff system shall be 

calculated.   
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 The number of unmetered parcels shall be multiplied by the monthly flow per 

equivalent dwelling unit as recorded at the Rancho Santa Fe Treatment Plant to 

calculate the Unmetered Flow. 

 The calculated Unmetered Flow shall be multiplied by 1.1 to account for potential 

inaccuracies of the unmetered flow calculation. 

The monthly total of Metered Flow and Unmetered Flow shall be the basis of the Annual O&M 

payment required to be made by Rancho pursuant to Exhibit B.  Exhibit C provides a sample 

Flow Report form. 

 

11. Assignment; Subleasing; Sale.  

A. Assignment; Subleasing.  

Rancho may not assign its rights, or any of them, under this Agreement without 

the prior written approval of SEJPA. Rancho may not enter into any sublease, nor may it sell, 

hypothecate, loan, or otherwise transfer any of its rights under this Agreement to another entity 

without the prior written approval of the SEJPA.  

B. Sale.  

Rancho may sell its capacity rights, or a portion thereof, to another party at the 

same price that Rancho pays the SEJPA provided that (1) Rancho first obtains the written 

consent of the SEJPA, which the SEJPA may grant or deny in its sole discretion, subject to a 

right of first refusal in the SEJPA members and any other conditions as may be required to 

correct or cure any then-existing violations of this Agreement; (2) Rancho or the purchaser 

addresses any jurisdictional issues which may arise under the LAFCO statutes; and (3) the 

purchaser agrees to terms and conditions of a lease substantially identical to this Agreement. 
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12. Penalty for Exceeding Capacity.  

In the event, for any reason, the flow from Rancho should at any time exceed the 

capacity limits set forth herein, Rancho shall pay increased O&M payments in the following 

amounts until the capacity overage is remedied. For this agreement, a violation of capacity shall 

be defined as exceeding 0.25 mgd within a rolling 24-hour period or exceeding 0.625 mgd for a 

60 minute period within any given day.  Exceeding 0.25 MGD within a rolling 24-hour period 

and exceeding 0.625 mgd for 60 minutes shall only be considered as a single violation. For any 

quarter in which the violation of capacity rights occurs, Rancho shall pay O&M payments 1.25 

times the normal payments set forth in Exhibit B. For any quarter in which more than 10 

violations of capacity rights occurs, Rancho shall pay O&M payments 1.50 times the normal 

payments set forth in Exhibit B for the quarter in which each violation occurs. Upon receipt of 

notice from the SEJPA that a capacity overage has occurred, Rancho shall have three months to 

develop a plan for remedying the overage, which plan shall be transmitted to the SEJPA in 

writing. Rancho shall have an additional three months to implement the plan and correct the 

overage. The SEJPA may grant additional extension, in its discretion.  

If for any reason Rancho fails, refuses, or is unable to cure the capacity overage 

by the final deadline set by the SEJPA, the SEJPA shall have the right to demand that Rancho 

disconnect as many connections as necessary from its systems to cure the capacity overage. In 

the event that Rancho fails to take appropriate action, the SEJPA shall be entitled to seek 

injunctive relief, specific performance, or other appropriate relief from the Court to ensure that 

Rancho does not continue to exceed its capacity rights under this lease.  

13. Late Payment.  

If any Lease or O&M payment due hereunder is more than 60 calendar days late, a late 
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payment penalty of 2% of the payment per month shall be due in addition to the actual 

Lease or O&M payment. 

14. Remedy for Breach.  

A. Breach by Rancho.  

In the event that Rancho should materially breach the terms of this lease, by 

failing to make lease payments when due, by delivering effluent which does not meet the 

requirements of this lease, by exceeding its capacity rights, or by other substantial breach, the 

SEJPA shall give Rancho written notice of the alleged breach. If the breach is not corrected 

within 30 days, or commenced and pursued to completion within a reasonable time period if 

corrective action will reasonably take longer than 30 days (including obtaining any required 

permits), or within such other time period as may be specified in this lease or in the notice of 

breach, then the SEJPA shall have the right to terminate this lease. In that event, Rancho shall 

make immediate payment for all services actually received up to the time of termination and 

shall send no more effluent to the SEJPA treatment facilities.   

In the alternative, and in addition to such payments, if Rancho has not 

commenced reasonable efforts to take corrective action, the SEJPA may, at its sole election, give 

notice to Rancho that the SEJPA will commence steps to make any capital improvements or take 

other steps necessary to increase the capacity available to Rancho to be leased to remedy the 

overage at Rancho’s expense.  After such notice is given, the SEJPA may commence planning, 

design, permitting, construction or other steps which are reasonably necessary to increase the 

capacity available to Rancho in the amount of the overage, plus a reasonable margin for expected 

increases in flows, and Rancho shall be liable for the costs of such activities, unless Rancho 

gives immediate written notice to SEJPA that it will cease such overage and complies with such 
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notice within 48 hours.  The SEJPA shall provide estimates of the expected costs of such 

activities with the notice or as soon thereafter as practicable.  Should Rancho correct the breach 

after notice has been given, and remain in compliance with this Agreement for a period of 30 

days, it shall be responsible for all reasonable costs incurred by the SEJPA pursuant to this 

paragraph, but the SEJPA shall cease making further expenditures or incurring additional 

obligations without the consent of Rancho. 

B. Breach by the SEJPA. 

In the event that the SEJPA materially breaches this lease agreement by failing to 

provide treatment, or by other material breach, then Rancho shall give the SEJPA written notice 

of the alleged breach. If the SEJPA fails or refuses to cure the breach within 30 days of receipt of 

such notice, or commenced and pursued to completion within a reasonable time period if 

corrective action will reasonably take longer than 30 days (including obtaining any required 

permits), or within such other time period as may be specified by this lease or in the notice of 

alleged breach, then Rancho may at its sole discretion terminate this Agreement or pursue other 

remedies to meet its obligations to lawfully treat and dispose of the quantity of wastewater 

covered by this Agreement. In that event, Rancho will pay for any services actually received to 

the date of termination and will not send further effluent to the Facility.  

15. Time of the Essence.  

Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  

16. Notices.  

Any notices required to be given to any parties under this Agreement to SEJPA 

shall be delivered either personally or by first-class mail, postage pre-paid, addressed as follows:  
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General Manager 

SEJPA 

2695 Manchester Avenue  

Cardiff by the Sea, CA 92007-7077 

 
Any notices required to be given to any parties under this Agreement to Rancho 

shall be delivered either personally or by first-class mail, postage pre-paid, addressed as follows:  

General Manager 

   Rancho Santa Fe CSD 

605 Third Street 

Encinitas, CA 92024 

 

  Any change of address by either party shall be made prior to the change by the 

methods set forth above.  

 
17. Governing Law. 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  

18. Severability.  

Should any part, term, clause or provision of this Agreement be determined by 

final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law of this 

state, or otherwise be rendered unenforceable or ineffectual by a final court determination, the 

validity of the remaining portions of provisions shall not be affected thereby, except in the case 

that the result would be that one party, or both parties, are deprived of material consideration for 

entering into this lease.  

19. Binding Nature.  

This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the 

successors and interest of the parties, subject to the prohibitions on assignment and subletting set 

forth above. 
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20. Attorney’s Fees.  

In the event of litigation or arbitration to interpret or enforce the terms of this 

lease Agreement, the prevailing party in such proceeding shall be entitled its reasonable 

attorneys’ fees in addition to costs. 

21. Authority to Execute; Indemnification.  

  The parties hereto represent that they have full authority to enter into this 

Agreement and that carrying out this Agreement is not inconsistent with any of its contractual 

obligations to any other person or entity.  In the event of any demand, claim, suit or other 

proceeding brought by any third party against SEJPA or its members, or against Rancho, arising   

out of Rancho’s performance of obligations and activities under this Agreement, Rancho agrees 

to defend, indemnify and hold SEJPA (and its members) harmless against any costs (including 

defense costs), damages or losses incurred in carrying out this Agreement and in defense of such 

claims; provided that SEJPA and its members shall reasonably cooperate in defense of such 

claims, suits or proceedings, except where SEJPA is at fault for intentional, wantonly reckless, or 

grossly negligent wrongful acts.  Rancho may select any legal counsel acceptable to SEJPA to 

defend such claims, provided that if such counsel is not counsel to SEJPA, Rancho’s counsel 

shall keep SEJPA’s counsel reasonably informed and cooperate with SEJPA’s counsel in the 

defense of any claim.  Neither Rancho, nor SEJPA shall make any claim or demand upon 

SEJPA’s insurer for any matter to which this indemnity applies 

In the event of any demand, claim, suit or other proceeding brought by any third party against 

Rancho or its members, arising  out of SEJPA’s performance of obligations and activities under 

this Agreement, SEJPA agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Rancho (and its members) 

harmless against any costs (including defense costs), damages or losses incurred in carrying out 
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this Agreement and in defense of such claims; provided that Rancho and its members shall 

reasonably cooperate in defense of such claims, suits or proceedings, except where Rancho is at 

fault for intentional, wantonly reckless, or grossly negligent wrongful acts.  SEJPA may select 

any legal counsel acceptable to Rancho to defend such claims, provided that if such counsel is 

not counsel to Rancho, SEJPA’s counsel shall keep Rancho’s counsel reasonably informed and 

cooperate with Rancho’s counsel in the defense of any claim.   

 

SAN ELIJO JOINT POWERS   RANCHO SANTA FE COMMUNITY 

AUTHORITY      SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

         

 

By:   By:  

Name:   Name:  

Title   Title  

Date:   Date:  
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Exhibit A - The 1991 Lease Agreement 
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About the Project 
Build NCC is the � rst package of highway, rail, bike, pedestrian, and lagoon 
improvements as part of the 40-year NCC Program. The NCC Program is the result 
of more than a decade of collaborative planning efforts between Caltrans, SANDAG, 
local cities, resource agencies, and community members.

Please RSVP to Kristiene Gong
EMAIL: Kristiene.Gong@sandag.org
PHONE: (619) 595-5342

We look forward to seeing you there!

11 a.m. – 1 p.m.
San Elijo Lagoon Nature Center

2710 Manchester Ave.
Cardiff, CA 92007

Parking directions and event
details will be provided in a
follow-up email invitation.

29

KeepSanDiegoMoving.com/BuildNCC
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Save the Date!
The San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) and the California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) invite you to join us in celebrating the
start of construction on the � rst phase of the North Coast Corridor (NCC) 
Program, known as Build NCC.

About the Ceremony
Attendees will have the opportunity to hear key agency of� cials speak,
view project displays highlighting Build NCC improvements, and enjoy food
and beverages. Attendees will be able to walk along a lagoon trail and get a 
glimpse of the project areas. Comfortable walking shoes are suggested if you
plan to walk along the trail.
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